
· .... ' 
t •, : 

r 
(, 

'SANtTI_U_D 
13 '·I /V 5 A 

Vfl25"i\JN .''(L.nfw;: D -, SEPT. I 1''-1! 
- -

;----

. 

This draft transcript of the recorded intervie\1" 

of William F. Friedman conducted by Dr. 

Forrep;t c. Po.9ge the Marshall 

·Libr-7ry in Lexingt::J"n.1 Virginia May l6-l7, 

19731 is not to be _released ·to an"yone with-. 

out _prior consent of -Gneral "carter. This 

is classified COWFIDENTIAL. ! t· '1 

_GEORGE C. MAHSH.Ill 





.. ---.- - - .. -_ .... 
( 

INTERVIEW WITH MRS. WILLIAM F. FRIEDMAN CONDUCTED BY DR. FORREST 

C. POGUE AT THE MARSHALL RESEARCH LIBRARY 

LEX1NGTON, VIRGINIA MAY 16, 1973 

Let 1 s begin ••• you were"going to college in Chicago •• 

You were going to Wooster College and after two .years your 

mcilhe;-/became ill and she died of cancer. When ·that was over 

you didn't want to go back to Wooster>you went to Hillsdale ••• 

Hillsdale, Michigan •• it's a hundred miles from 

my home town. ' -

ruestion: And you .. took your degree· in ED:glish and taught foi: 

a year and then dedided you didn 1 t want to any more and 

to Chicago •• 

/lnswer:- Yes, to look for a job. 

Let's pick it up from there. This is June 1916. 

As I was looking for a job in Chicago and went to an 

employment agency and nothing turned up, I remembered that there 

was a 1623/""original 1623 Shakespeare .folio in the Newberry 

.Reference Library in Chicago. I had never seen one and I decided 
.(1 n.-n 

to make a tripVto the Northside to see the Shakespeare 
.< 
folio. While I was there I spoke to the librarian and asked her 

if she knew of any jobs for a young college graduate who had one 

year's experience as the principal of-a small high school and 

had ma9ored in English literature. She thought a while and 

said, •well, she might know someone, and she told me about 

George multimillionaire who had an estate outside_· 
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Chicago and had all sorts of research things going on there·anO 
•hhl( ::Om(... 

among-th--em was.lre.search into cipher in connection with Shakespeare 

and Bacon. She said 11 Shall I call him up?" and I said 11 Well 

·I wish you would,please 11 and she did. It seems that THE Mr. 

F<ibyan decided he would come out to the Nel'rberry Library to see me. 

"'' He came out in his city car with his CtiaUffeur and came into the 
I . 

'Library. He was a very striking person, I noticed right away. 
"· ,.,, "- . 

Ve.ry big man and h:t"S was not bald. H.e had quite a-f-hair, 
T lt \J>'l . .l 

gray and a goatee that were also iron gray. 

He was dressed in a cut away and striped trousers. She introduced 

us and the first word$ he said to me nearly bowled_me over. He 

said you come out to Riverbank and spend night With me7 11 

.And I 11 011, Sir, I don't have anything with me to spend the 
,..II 

nig:t?-t away from my room". And he said 11 Never mind that. We can 

supply _};hat. Come on. 11 He masterfully took my arm and marched 

. m e out olf the Library and put me in this car and the chauffeur 

drove us to the Chicago Northwestern station.· We got 

on the train and proceeded to Geneva, Illinois,· which is twenty-

five miles southwest of Chicago on the main Chicago and Northwestern 

line. He took me to the far end of the car, which was completely 

empty when we got 

it wouid be 

rest of the car. 

C'Jf 
on the train, but he went to the far end of 

at the end of the car and facing the whole 

Tha t was his universal habit. lie al"s.,.ays 

sat in an end .seat with him facing the remainder of the car. 
' 

He settled me in seat there and he went off chattering to the 

conducter of"somebody •. Finally he sat down beside me and leaned 



' I • " 

forward and -in my f_ace 1very severely, anc;:l said nwell, what do 

you know?'' and for some reason or other I perkily turned my 

head toward him and said 11 That remains,sir,for you to find outl " 

3 

\):w<rhat gave me an idea that he thought I was pretty young and inexperience, 
. r.IJP'l'-

But I dressed the was in a gray which I was. 
• 

faille made Very simply and it a·ctually had a big white 

co1lar and cuffs and it gave me a very demure appearance. 
. oo\-1 .. 

I don't think any had ever called me demure. And I really 
. '{1}.\Q_.... . 

wasn't but I must have presented that appearance to him; So we went 
} . 

to his estate. "1-:•.At Chicago Northwe_stern station in Geneva, 

hs :country_car'_<:tnd country chauffeur met us. We drove a mile·or 

twa· to his estate and I was delivered to a house called""fhe 

Lodge. Now he had.a large estate of several hundred acres which 

was cut into three pieces,gn the side where I taken tolihe 
'). (J""("!l" .l.\-<'. )::> rC!.•: IJJUr \(v. 

Lodge, one of the houses where he housed workerS,was on one.side of 

the Lincoln Highway. Then came the Lincoln Highway, then came 

his part of the the house where he and Mrs. Fabyan lived, 

which wascalled the Villa and the Zoo ( she was very fond ·of 

animals, .she had a small zoo on the. grounds), that was there1and 

the garages and the cars •. ·And the thoLoughbred honses, Mrs. Fabyan's 

hObby was thoroughbred horses and she travelled all over the 
f'o; ,.,,..,.., country with these horses .... them afid ........... prize after 

prize. Colonel Fabyan was very careful to keep on the far side of 
the Lincoln Highway, away from 
the river, the Fox River cut into the estate had there 

a institution:;'what he called the ordnance laboratory 

and later the sound laboratory. And he also had the genetics 

laboratory_which was rigged up in a windmill 



c 
,.which ·also ,cont-ained a hothouse of plants. There he e\mployed William 

a'l0gT"actuate student 
FriedmanAfrom Cornell University, who had come their as a geneticists 

· .to" \ lt-o \-1'{ f\\5 
t.B--t,..j- .:ut Colonel Fabyans -'experiments in planting oats in the light of 

· the moon and his ·experimerits in sound1/ While we were there he built the 

second sound laboratory in the United States, under the directorship 

of Walter Sabin, of Harvard, who 

in the United States. They also 

h6;d buil't the
4 

only sound 

made tuning forks and ordnance 

Weapons, .ani-such. things, things that really turned out to be the only 

useful inventions or developments that were ever made at Riverbank. 

Questiol}-: Is th.at what the estate was called?· 

. 
Ans"}'ler; Riverbank Laboratories. ·Riverbank was the estate, but 

Rive-rbank Laboratories covered all those buildings on that1 one, 
. . \ . I •. '-.-;II 1 ._ .. ,! !7 • -. . 

side of the Lincoln Highway ·that carried onYdiscoveries in this or 

that. 

Question: You-were about going tO a meal ..• 

Answer: Oh, Yes. Dinners were·:served to the workers on the "place 

in this house called 'the Lodge, where I had been 
·l:J,--''''1. 

It was beauti:rul•.food and lots of it and 

given a room for the 

night. served beautifully. 

Mrs. Gallup, Mrs. Elizabeth Wells Gallup, who,quote,discovered 

close quote, the bV-literal cipher of .. Sir Francis Bacon:/- proving, 
. 

she claimed,that Bacon had written the Shakespeare plays 1 aS well 

as many other books of the Elizabethan period for that matter. 
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One of the amusing stories that I always recall about Fabyan 

sending for Wil.liam F. Friedman was this letter; and there 
(C.-

was a copy of it "-I many times. He· wrote to 

Cornell sayipg that he wanted an -expert in heredity. He 

was interested in the mutations of animals. He was 

interested in mutation_s of crops. He was interested in 

proving or disproving perpetual motion. In connection 
F· 

with the crops, he had William Friedman, who was 
I . 

geneticis_-:t;, planting ._oats in. the light of the moon 
. I . . an other phases of the moon, andto keep a record of the 

5 

resultS and so on. The point I was· going to make about the letter 

-to Cornell ·about. someone to do that work ·in the genetics 
l:fJ , ....... 

world and the almanac phases of he wrote to Cornell 
and described the kind of person he wanted and he 

said 11 I don':.t want a has-beener, I want an as-is-er. 11 

That was his description of the kind of he wanted. 

Well, at· dinner that evening I met William F. Friedman for 

the first time. Everbody was dressed very, I don't mean in 

eveing but everybody was very dressed up for the ocassion 

because th8..;1; was this kind of semi-formal atmosphe-re in which 

everything was run there. We alfways had pitchers of ice 

water and fresh fruit with fruit knives by our bedside 

when we went to bed. And we really lived the life of 

what you z:n_ight _call the minor ±dle rich. But he paid almost 
i'f' nothing. The idea was you are getting all these advantages, , 

you don't just 
' -1 ! pal in salary or money. So 

·,n 
\'ie all started and 

then the. ·wOrld began to pop· a:Td things began to happen. That 
' 

was in the summer of 1916 when I there. 
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Question: Before I forget it, that was the first evening 

you met William- F. Friedman? 

Answer: YE!s; I remember I can see him walking up the steps. 

I was on the porch to this house, 'the Lodge, at the entrance 
"-- -. . and I was sitting there pn -the banister or something. And 

And I 1ll never forget his appearance. 
I saw_him come up the He was kind of a Beau Brummel; 

he was so beautifully dressed and there was-no country 

informalilty about his attire at all. He was dressed as he 

would -have dressed going to a very well-to:....do home in a- · 

city hou;e. :J.' <. Notr "-eo.rJ- 'r-.,m-. 
c. 

Qusi;;ion: It is quite clear f'rom the"E!e pictures here-that he liked 

the bow tie tied just right-and his mustache was just 

right. _ 
he was 

Answer: Yes," sartora.<D. And always liked the bow ties. 

He 

we 

altmost never,never wore a f'our in hand tie. Well, _since 

were the only really young people on the plaCe we -:got 
f'riendly very shortly, We both got bicycles and 

would riaearound the countryside. He played tennis. I 
· · l.(ifl-

I'm not any good ..a:aQball, o-r-baseball didn 1 t play tennis. 

or tennis or golf or anything like that. 

Question: He was quite a good tennis played I take it? 

Answer: He was. He was a very good tennis player. He was 

a doubles champion in the District of Coulumbia for two 
o.J 

years I with p Major, Gh what was his name , began 

D in the Signal Corps, and they were the doubles champions 

in the Dis:6rict for a coP.:}le of years. 
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Q: Did he play golf too sometimes? 

A: Yes. Around 1948 the doctor told him he couldn't play 
,( .:-

tennis anymore and he took up golf. Now where would you 

like me to go from there? 

.Q: This is the sort of_ thin·g a biographer woUld like to know: 

wheil did he have his first heart problems? I_ know ·this 

is terribly-personal but it is 

A: Well,_ in about 1948, he had 

important.part of the story. 
. . - lt!\ . . 

a and 

the doctors· CtJOid him -while there was nothing ser,c;j_'us wrong 

with his ··heart then.:r it showe,d signs:-:thB.t it neede9, a little 

more care and that he' must .. not. :Play tennis 
So he stopped playing tennis and_it was-then 

:;a:;rn.li:lDCXl'IIDI: that he up · 
'' \-. (. j Jl _( ., . -u . . 

Q: So ·_he exercised very disciplinelf with 

his diet and exercise? 

A: Ye_s. 

Q; But still mangaed to do a lot of work? 

·A: Oh yes. 

Q: Were there two or three attacks? 

anymore. 

7 

attack that was diagnosed 1was 
first 

the mornin. 
A: when he had the 

. . . l . 
.,)April 3, 1954 orSS when the Washington ne.1;spapers came out I . ,, 

on Sunday with a headline that big saying Wasingington couple 
'I wins Folger literary prize and that very·moment before he had 

even seen the morning paper, he had this attack. He was in 
J 

such pain thB:t the perspiration absolutely poured in bucketsQ.ul 
i'' '' dom-1 his face and body. I got him into bed and called the 

doctor and he was taken to George Washington University Has pital 
' 

by ambulance all within half an hour and when made the first 

cardiogram they learned that he had had a previous heuzt 
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coronary because the scar tissue was already in 

the heart. Then he had a third attack May 10, while he was 

still in the ho·spital. He had a third coronary occlusion. 

He is only six percent of people in the who 

ever survived a third coronary occlusion. And look how . 
many yeaTs he ·went cin after that and how much work he did. 

· . hL wo..> (ttlo.ih\ <i<\M.. 
Q: And yes • · except 

. for climbing the stairs.· He continued to take walks. 

A: Yes.· 

Q: -·He had this ·form of vertigo where he couldn 1 t stand well? 

. A: I dan·• t that he had vertigo· exactly. - It was 
t\;'":>S . ·. . ...-o.i'\-

0 . ..,_- \ 
more a mean_s of taking a certain effort i'rom the heart by_ using 

this walking stick. It 1 s called an English shooting stick. 
1 ('r.<'Ct n . 

Q: Yes but somewhere in the last two years he had to go into the-

hospital with S?mething quite dizzy? 

A: Yes, they thOught he was getting Parkinson's disease, but 

the tests didn't follow that through. And I think probably 1 
n' :t yro.·-t bl"t"" 

·I should say, but "Cvertiredness I don't really know. 

Q: I think maybe later we can explore these things more. But 

I'm putting these things on so that a biographer can knCn·T 

that these are to be explored with you. He kept two or three 

projects going I know ... 

A: Yes, he always had more than one thing going 

Q: He working on Casanova .. 

A: Yes. 

Q: And I don't know; there were two or three things that he tal}:ed 

me abo·ut, Of course he kept up a considerable -amount-of-

conversation by phone with a number of people and a number 
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came there to see him quite regularly, 
A: Yes. 

Q: Admiral Weriger was One of those? 

A: Yes. He and Admiral Wenger, they.;; 1---Iy ·personal opinion is 

that they·won the war. • 
Q: 'cause they worked together on the .... 

A: Yes, ·.and .if it hadn t t been for Wenger's influence which came 
I . 

to him through what means I don't know, but_ apparently he 

ha_d control of a lot of money and the Sign?]. Corps, my· 

hu-sban·d, ·couldn't get any money. You see, he had.invented -the 
." ... .. Sigab? but there -was no money to And 

_Wenger said we have the.money but we have of sort 

ind we 

it was 

don 1 t have anybody capable of making one. And so f . 
·r · - ttJP'1. · tJ..Jhi(\1\-, 

therB forces joined 1 wh±eh-produced the Sigabaf. I think 

all right for me to say this , but ·I asked someone who I know is 

in a position to know, in the out at NSA, not 
· ( m·V k long ago. of as you know they carry on the section 

that has to do with the safety-of our own cqdes and systems 

and so on and it is just as deeply ananlytiC%s the group 

that ·.works on the analysis of enemy codes and ciphers or 

other countries codes and ciphers) I was. told there hasn't been 

a single message, according to their records which they feel 

are absolutely complete, there has never,never been a single message 

deciphered ·from the Sigaba machine. 

Q: Is thi·s :What we speak of as the purple? 

A: No, the purple code is the Japanese machine that was built 

from scratch and pieces of junk and so on. It was based on the 

Enigma, the German invention called the Engima
1 
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which was a great German cipher machine, and I suppose the 

Germans built it for the Japanese. Burl; you know wouldn 1 t 

even believe at the end of the war when they were shown it 

that the thing had ever been deciphered! They just wouldn't belieVe 
it] • 
Q: Is this S-A G A B-A? 

A: S-1-G-A-B-A, that's the American .. That's just the 

I can't give you the complete authoriatative name 

-for -it, at the just can 1 t Temember it. At any rate, 

f'or many years now the United_ States has been in 

. of keeping a constatn day to day, hour by hour 
.. 

check.on'the security df the Sigaba and .it is still 

·absolutely secure. 

Dr. Pogue: Yes, unless you have that kind of' security, you 

may have the code broken or something done so that _it's lost 

its complete value .. 
q' 

l/J..J . 
Mrs. Friedman:And of if that isn't if that becomes 

known that's one thing. 

Dr. Pogue: Another friend, and I want to go back later and 

get more on Wenger, another man I know he saw a good bit 

of Was Parker. 

Mrs. Friedman:m R. D. Parker. He is still· alive at the 

age of 91. · 

Dr. Pogue:: Astonishing. 

Mrs. Friedman: He is still a consultant to NSA goes out ·there 

two or ·three=: days a week. Hers amazing. No•tr my husband 1 s 

acquaintanceship and association with him dates back· to before 
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World War I. That printing telegraph machine there you see, 

the Signal CorpS used that .in all' their message centers 

through wars, that was their machine. You ·see the one that 

1 mean,· right next to the plain photograph qf Mr. Friedman, 

the machine in front of him with all those t_apes running 

in _and out._of spools there. -The A. T. and T., ·R. D. Parker 

was the chief pf researCh in the laboratories of-A.· T. & T., 

ar:-6. they had _this arid it was for the 

us!:7 of' sepdii?-g _ii:teesages over the wire because that could.· 

be wired. !-ight up to a comrilerccial :single 

telegr-aphy line, if.they i one, in 

· .-- ·the Anny __ for .and send ·me_ssa_ges . .-.: Well
1

·. the questio:O 

at that time, in. the late teens., was Whether .. 

a double key or a single keY should be used, which would 

be . was}he argument_ about it. Gneral Mauborgne, 

General JoSeph 0. Mauborgne, ·was ¥ery about the 

·idea. He -insisted that it had to be a double tape and R. D. 
/ 

Parker in A. T. & T., whose men: and he had developed that -thing, 

claimed that a single tape was safer. The double tape was based 

on someone _siJting down at the keyboard and typing out, 

Punching hc/Jok} in these tapes, typing out a key of 999,000 

letters as against one million letters and those two 
each 

sliding 

\._. 

another created still a third you 
-I· / 

) 

/ 

I( 

--
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Dr. Pogue: Was that picture made after the war? 
i< Mrs. Friedman: No, I thing' that was made, I know it was 

made before World War I. That particular photograph was 

probably made in Washingtnn in the Signal Corps, because 
. . \Y..r,..\. 
I)m quite sure one thing Colonel Fabyan never persuaded 

A. T. & T. to do was to ship the machine out to Riverbank. 

They riever had it out there. What stud)t. Na.x my husbank made 

of it was in the _A. T. $ T. in New 

Dr.· Page: Did A. T. & T. deve.lope this particular machine 

for the A'rmy?-

.-Mrs. Friedman: ·well, they were developing it for general 

because what it acutally could do you see, wa·s -yOu could tjpe 

out a message on a keyboard and it becomes cipher by the 

interplay of these key tapes oyer.here going through at the same ., ... 
·time the tape you out and those interact on each other 

· and out_ _cipher text over here and that can be put 

right on a communication line and sent, inst_antly. 

Dr .. Pogue: I wouldn 1 t have thought they needed that 

sophieic.ated a cipher machine. 

IZ-

. J.d/lJJ. 
Mrs. Friedman: Well they didn 1 t need it right then, -but 

like all reseacrd and development pedlple, Gen. M Joseph .I ,u.,ta... 
/a. tilL, 

0. Maubornge was one of those, he in charge of research 

and deVelopment when he got us to come to Washington, C:ft-d-

He was one ·of those who was very interested in that machine. 

He New 
(;\'\ . 

York one tHne when Col. Fa8yan 

went ther_e ·before the war, thas was arounfi 

and my husband 

19181'192d at 

the Ix±X latest, maybe as early as 1917 and that was the 

beauty of the thing. And do you know the Army used those 
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as a message sending machine, cipher or no cipher. They 

were used not ollly as machines but as transmitting 

machines for sending messages in World War I :fhey has them 

in all the big 

13 

Dr. Pogue: . And ·r suppose kept them·until some time 
the of 

before 

World War II , our entry into it. 

Mrs. Friedman: Well, I don't knowx hqw long they lasted 

in between. I developments went ·pretty fast 

after that. It ··wasn 1 to long after 1o_rorld War _I, 192], He bern 

his ( I dnn r t think _we have a He bern machine in 

this )It was a small, -lai-ge_r ·than this· but 

smaller than that. 

Dr. 'Pogue: In other _words smaller than a portable typewriter. 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes. 
-Dr. Pogeu: ·The other items looks like at small adding 

Mrs. Friedman: This?That's one of the-machines which was 

based on a· Hagelin and that was .what the doughboys 

carried that',the kind of thing ... may not be exactly the 

same model but they are both Hagelin 

Dr. -Pogue: -Hagelin? 

Mrs. FrWdman: Hagelin. H-A-G-E-L-I-N. Boris Hagelin. He 

is the greatest manufacturer of cipher machines that ever lived. 

He's still alive. I had a him the other day. 

Dr. Pogue_: ·Is he Swedish? 

Mrs. Frierfunan: Yes, but he hasn't lived in S'treden ... 

Dr. Is picture here some where? 

Mrs. I'm sure we have them in the collection. 
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Dr. Pogue: Is he a big man? 

Mrs. Friedman: NoJ he's not short, he's not terribly tall. 

I should say he would be almost, well he's probably 5'10-ar '11. 

Dr. Pogue: I remember seeing his picture, I'm nea-rly sure 

and it· showed ... 
J..v'-··· 

Mrs;· Friedman: I don't understand becuase we als\'iays used 

to have ·of him hanging ln the study. 

Dr. Pogue: Ye·s, I remember very well. 

Mrs. Friedman: I don't know what's happened to it. I'll 

have to look t:hat up. 

Dr.· Po.gue: -I'm· trying on hEire to ideiltify these ty 
. 

that someone coming in -the -rciom 'lS.ter will-. be able to t"ell 

which ones you are talking abOut, The macmiDne you are 

talking about ·the· doughboys ·carrying is in a khaki case. 

Mrs. Freidman: Yes. I thinks that'S interesting for that to 

be· seen. Now thi_s also is a Hagelin machine. Where' s that 

teensy-weensy little thing that's so cute? This was never 

put into production. ·This is a Hggelin machine. Isn't 

that adorable? 

Dr. Pogue: Yes. 

Mrs. Friedman: And what it aoes 

,) . v· 
.l' 1s ... here's the way you 

s"e/..t your cipher. You open this up and then you set a 

certain key across here, five discs, you set a key up 

·across there and that sets your key and then you do what 

ever settirig you are going to use here and\hen you turn this 

for your plaintext letter, say T-H-E. Ta and these go spinning c.:c-ound 
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Dr. Pogue: Now, can you reset these dies? 

Mrs. ·Friedman: · Oh, yes. Tha\1 s ·reset for every message_. if 

you wish to. And then it prints, if you please, it prints on this 

tape. 

.Dr. Pogue: I see. 

size 

Mrs • 

·electric 

Now 

• Now this thing looks like about twice -the 
II-' ""-"' "{P' -

shaver1 -It_ has 6.13 on it. 

6 was the catalog number fi:x:x my husband 

. gave_for cipher machines and devices. eftd fhis is number 

thirteen 'in the ••• 

_- Dr. Pogue: Yuou say that wasn't used? 

:Mrs. Freidman: Well, -not to :iny I don 1 t know hovr 

many.foreigh countries may be using it. But ·it wasn't used .. 

Dr. 'Pogue: That's Boris ·machine type C-35 serial nw-nber 

600. And here is Col. Fried.nmn's statement: The first ot' its 

type .•. I don't know h;:w much this sort of' detail 

Kahn has .in his full book I 1 ve only looked at the .•. 

Mrs. Freidman: Well, he never got into our library. That's one 
· UJ,JJJ qtl. in1o J+,,j J.'n"'M/ 

thing that there were strict orders until after my 
. /. 

husband's death arnr then I sent him upstairs for five minutes. 
' He wanted to know if I had such and such a thing in my husbands 

collection and hoi'T much was in the collection that had been his 

production, Kahn productions. And so I let him go 

upstairs to the ·library but I sent John Pontius with him, 

John Pontius was that young Army rrho was ltmrking for 

me and I had given him his instructions beforehand that he 

wasn't to. let Kalm. get away with anything. Not to be impolite, 

'-'"' but just hurry him throughg, hurried trip. 
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Dr. Pogee; Ithi:t:J.k perhaps we better, I don 1 t like to jwnp about 

like this but sometime if you let one of these go·you forget 

to put it dovm. · In view of the fact that there is a little 

controversial efuement about Kahn in his treatment of Col. 1 

Friedman, I think it would be very to put down here 

Kalm 1 s early with him- and just how much he 

got directly from Col. FriedrnruL. There ar_e some peoJtYe who 

say that Col. Friedman_gave him· secret iriformation and of 

course you and Col. Friedman both told me that you wouldn 1 t 

see him at 8.11. · 

Mrs. Freidman: That 1 s true. 

Dr. Pogue: ·He first, as· I remember hearing ·this from Col Friedman 
. . . b,r>f 

·on one o:f two occasions, }J got letters from David Kahn, who 

wrote -1he · Codebreak.ers 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes, but he was 13. 

·nr.· Pogue:And he saved his_money up and wanted to buy copies of the 

Riverbank s.eries, wasn't that right? 

Mrs. Fredman: ·uh um. His parents for graduation from high 

Xocxx2EguRX school gave him a mimeographed edition of the 

·Riverbank pamphlets. And he wrote Mrx Friedman and asked if' 

he would autograph them and Hr. Friedman thought well if 

some kid would rather have that amount of money spent .on 

this type of thing rather than getting a ne"I'T bicycle or ±}l.a:t 
sometfuing 

he should be encouraged. He had never seen the 

boy at that time, he §ust had his letters. This was not 

graduation _·from high school E±ghz: either, it vras graduation .. ""\ from junior high? So he sent him a whole set of the 

bank publications. 

nr. Forme: Which was alreadv in short suouly then. 
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Mrs. Friedman: Well it eertainly t a very generaour supply1 bu 

there v1ere quite a few more of them than there were later on. 

--·Bur we did see Kahn a few times over the years. Not very 

many times1 I wouldn't say more than three qr four times. 

There was a lot o.g correspndenc"e becuae _you sNrn-uxx couldn 1 t 

shut him up you know. You'd answer some question he may have 

raiSed- and then· -he would come back with some question 

that_ question raised. Me was finding some excuse or 

othei to write But we really didn't see very .much of him. 

-When he did that article for the Scientific American,-which . 
-_was 8.b6ut·i965.or some time along there. . . . 

···.Dr. Pogue: ·And this was on ... 

Mrs. Freidman: What was it called? It wasn't ·an William F. 

Friedman rl±N.Jmigflx but he took up. a lot of space in 

it of course. I wrote him a letter and qurned him up about 

something or other in that and sam on . .r think- that 

Kahn's not wicked. He 1 s not a deliberate trickster or a 

-meany or any of those things. His mind has one fixation 

·and he .has it so strong@;y that what seems to other people 

to be a presumption on his part is merely an expression 

of this passion he has. And I'm convinced that he does mean 

well/ Nm-1 I had dinner with spoke about hirn 

recently having been to Washingtin. He was over here 

on that around the 

his paperback book. And he me. 

countr:l TI p.romot:!.on for' 
I 

He managed to \·iangle out 

Of some_b6dy dm·m at the archives my telephone nu._rn.ber and he 

.c\alled 1ne and asked me to have dinner with him that evening, 
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didn't want to go down town and all that such a mess so 

I said 1 111 meet you at the Cosmos Cllib,you come up there. 

I just treated him like more or less of a ·stranger. rre 

talked something about the publication of waat·he was 

doing now _and about: what material out 6r 1he -

•' .-. 

Codebreakers for the paperback form and all that type of thing. 

·we didtJ:'t t get very serious and I didn't give himf_ mw_ 
irifOrmation. But I think hers learned a lot of sense 

over the ye·ars and he certainly isn't vicious. Whereas 
. . 1 

a lo.t of peiople can .be vicious if they. ve .been tUrned down ... 

-._Dr. P?gue_: .You think that he does mean well, but that 

he just .•. 

Mrs. Friedman: He·, sjust in€pt. 

Dr .. ·Pogue: 
. 0 

And he has enormous admiration 

for'col. Friedman. 

Mrs. Oh yes, he does indeed.· 

Dr. PogUe: I got the impression in those _last years Col. 

Friedman ... 

Mrs. Friedman ... got very annoyed with him. I can remember 

David Kahn sitting at our hoase one time one evening when 

he insiSted on taking us out to dinner. That's another thing, 

my husband would never accept any hospitality from him 

because he that that kind of thing just would do.But this 

time he insisted on taking us out to dinner and I think' 

the only way we cut him out of that was to take him to Fort 

McNair .where of course you can't pay cash and then we stopped 

at our house_, he brought us back and He stopped there and 
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comment 11
• 

11 Jhio comment. 11 one after another. Finally he said 

can r t you even :tell me if you were avrake at two or three in 

the morning and whether you drank black coffee or not and 

my husband .said 11 No comment. 11 and at that he gave up and left 

and I never heard from him since this time recently 

when he cam·e back from England. Jeorl pun 
Dr. Pogue: Well, Col. Friedman called me twice that particular 

,kdlli 1 o.//1).. . . 
day, but it ·was becuase I think he would take a 

nap and wake up .. and .he would just. want to talk. So ther "iS"as 

a period. there he 1 d call- me maybe three ·nights a week and chat. 

HE! :gcii. very becau·se one, Kahn sent _him, not 
. . . .• 

Codebreakers, but -another- book or some:thing, .I can't remember, 

sOme pub_lication and then he sent him some papers, it seems to 

·me,". which Col. Friedman class.ified·. or ·something-
.. . ..th'"" 

andwas mad and said I w:ant to report him .. And ·r said11 0h you 

" eally don't w_ant to do that do you1" And he said Well, 

" he ·just wOrries me to death. Of course I know-that Col. 

Fre-?-dman got Very put out with people who kept g 

him. I remember his attitude toward Farago on 

this score. 

Mrs. Freidman: Well that man I coul_d have killed! I practically 

did. 

Dr. Pogue: He was wanting material Broken Seal? 

Mrs. Freidman: Uh um. That was before that came out. NoH 

there agairi he was just racing against time. He put do'rm 

anything matter ho'tl wild or untrue or crazy it was he put 

it down· anything in order to get a book size publication because 

he was determined to beat David Kahn on getting out The 
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Dr. Pogue: App?-rne:tly he did Game of the Foxes the S81!le ttray. 

And then he rushed into print with this Eichman thing. 

Mrs. Frien1man: · Novr I don't remember about that. I remember 

seeing it mentioned but I didn't pay any attention· to it. 

Dr. Pogue: I don 1 t mean Eichman_, I of · 
• cause ·he came -out With this business that Borman had been 

found . and I guess he got a lot of for the article 

but ·r ·thing that has been pretty throrughly dis:Proven, 

Mrs. Friedman: That's Farago god of courseJ money.He'd 

tell any lie, do anything I think. 

Dr. Pogue:_· And the· awful thing about it is that _both 

·_those_ books were on the best· selier_-list. for a lOng time.' 

·And _he made· a ·great deal of money from them 8.nd passes as 

• a great expert this field. 

Mrs. Friedman: He's awful. 
Ct} 

Dr. Pogue! Now he did have a good deal of background, World 

War II in intelligence work.t didn't he? 

Mrs. ·Friedman: No, he didn't really. He was a special adviser 

with no official standing whatever.t but.appolntment simply 

by Frank Know.t Secretary of the And his field of 

was psychological warfare. 

Dr. Pogue: That 1 s right, he was in that section '\'Tasn' t he? 

Mrs. Friedman: PyschologicS.:l warfare and he was never inside 

Naval Intelligance (tape baqly garbled) •..•... was chief of 

Naval Intelligence, etc. etc. and Ladislas Farago '\'Tho never 

got inside ·the door of Naval Intelligence said nothing, 

he didn' -f even shake his head no! 

Dr. Pogue: Goodness. 
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0 
Dr. Pogue:We were talking about ... know exactly what tore 

off that end ( the tape) we may have lost two or three minutes 

of the very beginning of that other side, I've got it down 

here, we can always go -back and record that1 .we ·talked about 
I 

Farago, but we had finished that topi..,c hadnft we? .And I'd 

gone back to Kahn again a minute, and •.. 

Mrs. Fredman: That's when I asked you about that 
review of._.E:alm that I saw .. • 

Dr.· Pogur::. Yep I said the main thing ·was to get on here: 
. .• . . 

the ;feelings your feelings about D3.vid and then I suppose 
. . I . 

I.had mentioned that fact that Col. Friedman to . I 
·me a -.or. t}'lo about hiS annoya.r,tce with. Kahn, ·but 

I khow that David personally was._extreniemly fond of Col. Friedman. 

Mrs. Freidman: Yes . 
. 

Dr. Pogue: But ... 

Mrs. Friedman: It was his annoying he'd 

<.?-lways ·come back l.n the hope that this time he Could break 

Mr. ·Freidman down a..11d get him tricked or coerced or coaxed 

into making some statement or other. 

Dr. Pogue: I really think he thought he could talk :i:±x him 

into it. Not trick him1 but he was a\-.rare that Col. Friedman 

has thought highly of his work before and I think his feeling 

is though that Col. Friedman reacted because_ some people in 

' reading the book ±hatought ±haZ he had gotten things from 

DJl. that he hadn 1 t. Because my impression al'trays 

was that Col. Freidma.Yl went out ofhis way to be extremely cc..reful. 
' 



.. 
\_ 

Nrs. Freidman: Well, noN you· ±h.a: take this man Stuart Heddon, 

who was the American agent for Boris and the machines 
u ... 

selling them in this country, yoi see. And I gave Stuart 

Hedden's name to Ronald Clark. Ronald Clark wrote to him -
:. 1/(tU 

·Heddon now lives in Florida- and he's about 71, but 

he would look about ·50 - t he's a very hands om S• . .;ede over 

six ·feet tall- he's about 6 feet 4, I 

-Dr. Pogue: ·r bet iS's that mans p-icture that I've seen. 

Mrs. Freidman: -.Probably. . 

Dr. Pogue: .Because I remember very kin: 
_:·_-'_Mrs. Friedman: Well; he replied .to Clark that: he _wasn't _s8.ying 

\-0 hrYh-
noybut he felt that he could not- help him because, although:t 

. William F .. f'riend:J and all ·that kind of thing 
(· ' . 

and t with him on the purely bus.iness side of purchase or 
l( 

type. 

of Hagelin machines, Hedden said that Col. 'Friedman neve1 

onee made the remarN that could possibly have been 

considered classified And Stuart said that in 

this iast letter ( rm going to sen±d dOI'm a copy o; that), 

his letter to Clark, that even though Mr. Friedman came to his 

his farm in Connecticut, several time to rest for a fei>I days, 
/)'I '0 cj '•l·lf\1', 

Ume. that Stuart then ·later th@:_t :that was when he was 

during 

the 

working on the purple code, that he never once mentioned 

anything and that he leaned over backwards to keep ar.·ray. And he 
. 

said he talked to him even after I beca.'lle Inspector Geileral 

of the ETX CIA, which he was for years a..'1d knew what he 

d ' . th t M F . dm sj,/1 
' . was Olng, a r. rle . an never, never >:l":!l :1.c 
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or breathed a word of anything. He didn't even act as if there was ru 

thing to be said. 

Dr. Page: WellJ I think that often when wy you aren't sure 

what people know ·or what has been it gets mixed up 

in your ±_mind as to what you can about safely, and to 

whom, that you tend to feel that the easiest thing to do, 

or the safiest tfuing to do 1is just not talk. 

Friedman: Just never, never say anything. · . 

De. Pogue: Ii m sure there have been· times in your married life 

when your were working for the Navy and he was working ·rar 

the'. Army, or did you both ._work once for the Navy? 

Mrs. No. And I Wasn't with the N_avy very long; 

·it was only about six ... 

Dr. Pogue:Theye may have been ·times when you x didn't talk to 

each other some things. 

Mrs. Friedman: Exactly3 exactly. My husband got called on 

carpet one time by General Strong3 the head of Military 

Intelligence 3 accusing him of talking to me1because I 

worked. for the NaTy.· Of course there was no truth in that 
; ,.. r 6 

at all and that with the Heberrrn machine-

when the Navy was considering buying the Hebern machine. 

I can 1 t remember whether we have a Hebern machine in this collection 

or not; I don 1 t th±rrk we have. · 

Dr. Pogue: This is George B. strong, head of ... 

Mrs. Yes. 

He was there at the beginning of the -..Jar. 

Mrs. Friedman; Yes. But I 1 ll say this, and this is _for the record, 

any record) anybody can use it any;.ray they want. The 



the..;:!", what is now ·called the purple code, was that one 

' ing he told me that that day Hajor General Nauborgne, 'chief 

Signal Officer, had called him, \.J"illiam F. Freidman, into the' 

office of the Chief Signal Officer and said 11 Look, this group 

that I have working on 'that Japanese cipher_aie getting 

no where. I want you to drop everyting and devote your 

entire time to that. He told me that, I didn 1t knmY anything. 

it, he didn 1 t mention what was going on or what machines 

known to be in existence or anything. And .the thigg that 

astounds me so,···a:s I 1 ve looked. back on it times, wa:;; 

that the _day that the first message, when they made that purple mach: 

_-, so .purple machine, Out· _of nuts, boLts, screws, rusty 

. this that_, of everything and they got the p1achine 

to the point where he ran a message through and it actucU.ly 
J'lo'l · · 

•.. he ... now woUldn 1-t yo,; have --thm.ight ·that any being that was 

human couldn 1 t have that they would have said 

Something on-that day. Never said a word to me. I didn 1 t 

know anything about it. 

Dr. Pogue:That would be awfully hard to keep to yourself, 

wouldn 1 t it? 

Mrs. Friedman: Why, I have just never been able to -understand 

thatJ 

Dr. Pogue: Because it was a culmination of the greatest 

piece of work that he ever accomplished. 

Mrs. Fri!'!dman: And Hedden, I I'Tas going to se:1.d a copy '1.7'-
' of this letter, Stu:ra:t Hedden said when h<::! -,.ras .,.lith th<::! 

' L• 

as Ingpe.ctor Geneal, he had access to all the knm-lledge concerning 

all the and all the cipher. machines and that, that 
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of knew all about everything, he still never mentioned 

-it, not once. Stuart said that he learned that , this was in 

the same letter, ±Na±xRz:xi.x this makeshift maci1ine, out of 

bits and pieces ind rusty parts, worked better and faster 

than the purple machine ·when ·they finally 

a hold of a real purple machine. 

Br. Pogue: But -that first one was rentirely improvised. Then 

they made· what? five more? three more? 

Mrs. Fredman: ·Yea. Mac Arthur had One, This is one thing that 

always got me alxlut MacArthur, the old .. s:Pea.l.cing 
about · · 

up in SUch derision_?f the AmeTican-Army letting 

Pearl ·Harbor happen. Then the ·next day the Japanese attacked 

·the Philippines and he had to leave. And he had, as far 

as I know they didn't have a copy of the purple machine in 

Honolulu, ·but MacArthur had one . 

. Dr. ·pogue: He had one and the British had one. 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes.The British had one and I think they were 

making another that 1.;as to go to Hawaii, but it hadn't gone. 

Dr. Pogue: Of course our great fear was the Philippines, not pearl 

Harbor. That was part of the trouble. Then there 

four? 

Mrs. Friedman: feeling is that five.The Navy would 

have had the would have one1 in 

two ; the. Philippines was three; the Bri'i={tish was four. 
. 1 ',r-Ill I' r _., .• '' • _, • 

that was all of' the::n or there was a fifth some'trhere. Bu"G 

the.t 1 s 

Whether 

my is the Sa...'Tie as yours, something rattles in my head 

about there having been five. 
,, _.._ ______ .., .._, __ .._ "·- .._, __ 



. ' 

-c ( 

headquaters. 

Mrs. Freidman: I think it went to the Pacific. 

Dr. Pogue: I believe so.· 

Mrs. Fril:edman: -But that's my assumpt-ion. Tl}ere again there . . 
were other peopilie that were just as-closed mouth as my husband 

was. I Abe Sinkov, who was in charge of that, in 

Australia under MacArthur. And Major General Aiken, Spencer 

Aiken, -was -the had of the whole ·signB:l Corps and 

Intelligence· businesS in Au£.Sralia a:ll during the war and 

neither o:f them have ever opened the±r mouths, that I know- of, 

about anything , 

.Dr. Pogue: Geneal Aiken comes here occasionally .. I know he 

was here for the dedication. ·P.nd I don't ·kllow -if he's ever 
f L'r I 

looked at this not too far from here. 

Mrs. Friedman: I know, I get a Christmas card from him · 

every year. And I meant to write t·o him this year. He lives 

at Purcellville, near Leesburg. I had a feeling that he would 

like to hear from me because he had senf.:the "letter to an old 

.address and it had gone back to him apparently because I 

couldn't be found and he took the·trouble to get my present address -

and send the card to me again, and had v1ritten on it 11 Come 

and see me sometime. 11 I remember he Has going blind at the 

time of my husband's retirement. That he wasn't abellto drive 

down frrr; Purcellville, that Hrs. P.i!:.en drove. Jl.nd I 

think he is totally blind by no·..r, a.71d has been for a num.ber of 

years. 

Dr. Pogue: V-Tell, you see, he was still able to get about at the dedic< 
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Mrs. Friedman: Well he has a man living there with him. I don 1 t 

know 
h.\·! 

anyone whose 1 s actually seen him1 unless they have 

gone out there to see him. 

Dr. Pogue: When you mentioned him being put on to this thing_, then fi 

the next few weeks or months 1 waGhe working-night and day? 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes. 

Dr. Pogue: 
,, 

So you sa"- very litt-le of him? 

Mrs. Friedman: -Neve·r ..• Well he 'i'Tas at home at night, persurnably to 

sleep, but -ke couldn't sleep. He'd be up until two and three 

in the morning·. Sometimes I'd awaken and find ·him down in .th_e 

. _ki tcherl making a DagWOOd SandWiCh_ three 0 I ClOCk in the 

.That kind of thing. He did Oat .•• ·. · alld then too 

they had ·all the time, twe!lty-·f'our 

hours a day_, ·seven days a week. Kramer .was the Navy guy 

was responsible for delivering the messages to the 

·Whi 1/.ouse, the ·secretary of Navy, the SecretarY of War, 

the Secretary of State and who was the· fifth one ..• I don't 

remember now. But, ID:!x that was open .. 

Dr. Pogue: Did you include Stark? Chief of Naval Operations? 

Mrs. Friedman: Well, that would be it, I guess. The officer, 

·what was his nm·r, who was ?f Military Intelligence, 
I 

was really the head of the purple organo,zation, he 1tras the 

man. •••• 
rof.;/lr' Dr. Pogue:t.'Bratton. 

Mrs. FriedmN; Bratton; That was it. And I remember Bob Shoecraft. 

Colonel Shoecraft, he is retired nm·r, of course, v;as a close 

firend ·of ours and he was not to be on duty that weekend but 

for some reason or other, someone must have felt something in 



he crune 0N in on Silturaay and changed his clothes, he was 

supposed to come home and off duty. He was there on Friday 

night on duty and siilpposed to come home morning 

·and off duty for the weekend. But he came home and changed 

his clothes and went back. He never told Jackie. anything about 
a. ' I . . 

what it was about. BUt that was 

Dr. Now, in this· business of working on that macliine, 

earlier, did this hard work lead to that haert business? 

Do you feel that this helped to cause the heart problems 

in Colonel Friedman? 

Mrs. Friedmari: Well, a ... I don't I ever that 
& . thrOugh, you by word. He certainly had the heart· 

condition. "He had the heart condition ·and was made stoP 
-

He had some heart condition that caused the doctor 
;>_ -

to issue orders he was to smoking in but i:h at 

would be several years later. But the funrty thing is that 

when he :was so determined to get away from Riverbank, w·e were 

both so determined to get from there and the Army was 

aite! him to stay in the regular Army, although he had been 

discharged at Fl-=. Dix, when he c81!le back from Europe in 1919. 

I told you he had to stay over write the history. In April 

of 1919, I came to New York City and met him and we stayed around the 

East and he was discharged at Ft. Dix in April 1919. Then later 

under constant pressure from the· Amy, from people like General Me.:u-

borgne, and Bratton and people like that, Here all 

" L h pressing him to go into the regual·r Amy you see, e was :e --
given a pQySical exrunination for permanent commission in the 

Army after \'re had been forced to go back to Gene1ra because 
' Col. Fabyan just pestered the:J_ives out of us. Ever.twhere my 
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husband went to-look for a job when he came back, after World 

War I, the1;:: d be a telegram waiting there 

on back, your salary has been going on. n 

for him . 11 Come 
Tl''"'' 

we decided that we 
"' 

J·ust had to get away from there and we "'rerJnot going to stay I . 
at Riverbank any longer, then my husOand told Col. Fabyan 

about this urge on the part of Several of the Army people 

-for him to go into the regular Army, So he went .up to some 

place in Illinois, ·north of Ge"neva, I've forgotten _the ne.rne of 
e 

the_ placE\ now, and took a physical. exarnina_tion and they said "'-

he had a heart condition. Nmv we never believed that ·at 

-the time_; bec-ause Col. Fabyan.' s brotheT-in .:..law·, Colo"nel . . - - ... 

Trotter, whO was in_the regular Army,Was of that post 

where he went -to-take this· so·we thougi_ that Fabyan 
. . . . 

• 
··had just got Trotter to off the whole thing and 

he never payed.any attention. MY husband on playing 
l . 

tennis_ and do:Lng a lot of strenous things. ana-_ then it was in 

arid the funny· _part about it_ was, in January of 1955_ he was to 

go to Europe-on something like a six weeks trip it was 

a very 1 very shhh and very ,very classified and he went through 

a complete physical. examination to that 

He got back in February, he left the end of January, got back the 

end of Feb. or the first week in March and then he had VThat 

was instantly diagnosed as a thrombosis on April third. 

Then they found the scar tissue from an earlier attack. Then he 

had anothe_:c coronary occlusion of the lOth of r1ay. Re is one 

of six of the people in the vlOrB:.d e'ler survived a 

third coronary occlusion. 
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Dr. Pogue: Well ... I suppose \'fhat I 1 m _getting at ifa Suggestion 

' made in, I don 1 t know whether it was in Kahn 1 s not, 

that he had something like a nervous breaM down after the 

work on this machine ... 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes..--

Dr. _Pogue; Was it lflhen or later? 

Mrs. Fredman: It was_after the thing was broken. That brought 

the crash. He apparently had just been Wound up and built up and 

_built _up· and _then when they got the thing and read th€ first· 

that 1 s when he crashed. 

_Dr.: Pogue: ,And-he was away from·Work for awhile? 

Mrs.· Frie-dman: .Yes •. He was ··away fi-om wo!-k ·for between three 

. four months,. -I And then when he werit ·back General 

..•. whoever it 
I " 

was ••. I " fl.t thA.t t;j_mP., ::;A.i d hP. WP..s nnt to 

go back to the cryptanalytic wOrk, but to do entirely administrative 

work. _Keep an eye on the operation as it went along and coordinatior 

with the Navy ... 

Dr. Pogue: Butxk±x this helps explain why he 
. I 
was not 

I 
brought in to 

.±.hn:.±: any part of the process relating to the breaking of the 

just before Pearl Harbor. He had no 
' 

particu.a.if role in that. --in-that. __ _ 

Mrs. Friedman: Oh yea! Oh yes! He had almost the entire Tole in 

it. That _was the ... General was ... that was in 1940 

when Gener.al Mauborgr(called him in and said drop 
l l- •')--. -· ' .. 

and go to work on this. months before they read the 
' first messages out of the machine and made plain lagguage of it. 

Dr. Pogue: But what I meant was he wasn 1 t vrorking on :tltzx this 

that week? 



( 
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Mrs. Friedman: Oh no. 

Dr. Pogue: I don't knmv whether that was during the peiod 

.that he was away from work or not? 

Mrs. Friedman: No, that was earlier. You mean. the period when 

J:le was away from work? That followed the breaking. 

Dr. Pogue: .so _this is .in 1 4o, when he was -from work, or' 

early 1 

Mrs. _Friedman: Yes. And i.:f I remember rightly it was December 

or J;:1nuary. Anyway there was a period there when· he was sort 

off and on work and then he· was out completely on a· sort of 

· _.c?m:Pl_ete and he was ·in Walter Reed awhile_, then he 

was out. abile and _then he ·Mo.unt AltO, ·the· veteran r s hospital 
l 

for " awhile .and that was in 194"'-: 

Dr. Pogue: Then his job normally would not have brought 

. him i_nto dec idling on the whether or nOt that was a winds 

message or not. There 1 s been so much argument abOut Saffoid. 

Mrs. Friedman:· Safford is ·a nut! He is just· about the biggest nut I h< 

ever met in any military servide. And I could find a thousand 

people who would agree with me. Nobody, but nobEl.dy ever s_.:<gr.eed 

\'lith him that hure was an east winds message. That'S what 

it was you see, the Japanese had set up these four messages, I think 

it was four messa·ges, each one consisted of three words, and what 

it amounted to was a code within a cipher system. They said that 

every :night. at six o 1 clock there would be a l'ieather broadcast 

and that ·the to signal their fleet that they h·ere 
\l" (' •I 

going to .attack .Great Britain would be'·North Tfiind and 

if it \'las .going to be United States territory it would be 

\' East Wind •I Rain and the others I've forgoteen at the moment. 
\ 



.. 
there certainly: around in records. But the Japanese never sent those 

messages. They never, never, never. There-was the most intensive 

radio watched was ever conducted in the history of the 
I 

worB:;dl They just never sent those messages. And Safford lias 
,, ' 

that idiot that insisted that there was and East Wind Rain 

message. "' 

_Dr. Pogue: Not only that, he said that this made him positive that 

they were going to attack Pearl Harbor. They fi?ally worked him 

over. on tha·t. one. 

Mrs. Freidman:· He _is crazy. I_knew Scfford quite well. He 

was _, for ·a ·the_ chief of the cryptographic_ <;ommunications _ 

. end of. -the Navy· when I was there,. the s:t.x months that ·r was 

there. :r 1 ve forgotten· who took his pl<ice ·and whoever the 
''/ 

lieutenant in that was, was replaced %Wenger .. 

Ani f'rom then on Wenger and my husband wP.rP. ·the c:l.o:,:;est of 

f'rie:d:ds- and :they really had .parallel lif'e historJties even 

when it came to the physi·cal thing. w€nger had the 

same series of' heart attacks and kinds that my husirand had. 
' . . 

Dr. ·Pogue: Did he 1¢ve another two years youz: husband died? 

Mlrs. Frie.dman: Less than a year. Eleve n months. 

Dr. Pogue: And then Mauborgne went after that? 

Mrs. Friedman: Just last year. 

Dr. Pogue: Then there was another one. Hitt? 

Mrs. Friedman: Oh yes, Parker Hitt lived over here at Front 

Royal. He 1··s been gone for quite a f'e'..r years. That 1 S he 

there. We knew him ... he and his wif'e ZJI had invented, 
_,.lthough 

independently, rlfxcoa1.:.x2. Jeffers on had in vented it origninally, 

that st"rip cipher. You know sliding these things up and dmrn 

We had met them as a matter of fact, Col. Fabyan had them 
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little 

--- .. -·· ---- _,. ------- ·-·--- ·---, 

out at RiverbanN. Because he was interested in everything 

under the sun., you And here talked like this N:az 
is a 
±hzxgreatezt inVention and somebody 1 s going to make a 1' 

of money .. _ 
H· 

Dr. Pogue: I don 1 t know if we talked enougq about Hii}. You 

said he lived down in Front Royal and has been dead for some 

years .. Just what was their relationship and when did it begin? 

Mrs. "Frie.drnan: At the period· juSt he fore the beginning of 

W_orld War I., Col. Fabyan, who inspite of his comPlete lack 

· o·f ·education, ·seemed to have a great facilit8.y for seeing 

what w·as ahead and what was c9m_ing, .and he s-a:w that4l this_· 

was going t? be caUght "in a war or at least ·a 

very difficult, situation. And· theY had nothing,-

but -:pothing -to meet ·the situation with in the f'onn of secret 

apparatus or plans for· communication. He looked around the 

.country and found out that there were only ab?ut f'i ve people 
01 "''1 

Who what the words code and cipher met •. ·And one Of them 

was Parker Mrs. Hitt had been interested-in the 

subject for many corresponded with each other_privately 

in a cipher. aft-d- -hhey invented this wooden box that had strips E.:i or 

separations for twenty ::s:tix six lines across .. Their model was 

madr:-.0---f wood. Parker Hitt was not able to come to RiverbanJr_,• I 

mean his official position at that time, I 've f.orgotten, it may 

have been the Fort Leavenworth School. But at any rate, he could not c 

me. But Mrs. Hitt came and demonstrated that sliding cipherJ 
. A 

rrhich isJ well its one of the older fonnsp a_ French cryptographer- 1-. .1 

first of it or used it very early in the 1900 1 s. But it 

\'Jas invented independently by several people. The Frenchman 1 by 
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Dr. Pogue: He 1 d done it first? 
'! 

Mrs. Friedman: He 1 d done it first, ·' Yes. His antedated alllthe 
'· 

others. 

Dr. Pogue: But none of these came from that? In other words, 

his invention was knwwn generallY? 

Mrs. Friedman: No, _they were, all of ±N:Elll;<: these inventors were 

independent people and not one of them had seen anything before 

hand. ·And it wasn 1 t until after World War I that the Thomas 
. 

Jefferson thing was discovered. It was disCovered in his 

•. 

Pogue: He proba"qly played aorund with it ·and· hadn 1 t 

·used it/ :, 

Mrs. Friedman:. actually my husband and I dmm to 

Monticello two different times and td.P.c't. at every possible 

the:r:.: to find if somewhere in 

·"aam li 
oi around Monticello and all 

arrdr-·and what have yoU tha. t 

. were therj there .might been, that he might ha4ve made a working 

model of the device, but it has never been found. There is a 

complete description and picture I suppose you 1 d call it, drawing 

of the device. But its described very adequately and very 

thoroughly in those papers. 

Dr. Pogue: You could build something from it? 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes. 

' Dr. Pogue: ·· I wonder if :tre picked any of this up from his tr;avels 

abroad? if he 1 d seen something like it there? 
,. 

Mrs. Friedman: I thini· the French thing, Bazeries, was the 
··i1- n- c r·-c.r..--_·:; 

Frenchm"an,!lwho book and, ['11 lobk up the date for 

you on that, but it was later than Thomas Jeffersonr s presence 
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Well, I started to say , there were only so many people in the 

United States who even so much as kaew what the words code and 

"' cipher meant an-d I _named Parjer Hitt. Another one in the Arrn:y 

was Joseph 0. Mauborgne, m, he was 

one of the early radio inventors. was just coming ourt. 

·Major General Squire was the Chief Signal ·officer at the time 

when we came to Washingon on .;ranuary 2 1, 1921 and went to 

work for the Signal Corps. o. Mauborgne had been the 

first p8rsqn in the Wor'R:.d ever to sOlve .the Playfair, 

cipher system.- It had beeri the ·official British Army 

for many y_R:al:X many many many .years. I was ·based on a a . · 

··square holding twenty-five letters, five _rows ·across and 
. -

?-owrt.j The ·message, plaintext message would be. 

enciphered two lette_rs at a time and that was ·achieved ·by 

within this square .taking a smaller square. S-&pp_Ose you 

wanted to encipher THE, TH, you would look in your Playfair 

square and look ·to see where H is and where T and then 

your cipher letters would be the le_tters at the orfosi 
••• 

_corners of that square. So that it was.; we call it a_ di-graphic 

or bi-graphic form of encipherment. Now he solved that on 

any Army transport on a trip back frojthe Philippines and did ut the 
it in less that six weeksJit was considered a great achievement 

of th,age. 

Dr. Pogue:- I "WJuld think it would be phenomenal. 

Mrs. Friedman: And Hi tt and v1ere 

who became head of the code and cipher 

Col.Frank 
c<f" 

section -of 

GHQAEF.later also had taught something about the use of 
' codes and ciphers at Leavenvrorth, so he kne'tf a little 
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about the subject. That 1 s four. 

Dr. Pigue: And Manly must have ·come in about this time? 

Mrs. Friedman: Manly had not dealt with any offic,&_Yl ciphers. 

He had been interested in cryptography- in a sense, going 

back to times, in the literary sense,and looked into 

literary cipheDand so on. When he came out to·look at Mrs. 

Gallup 1. s 'l?iliteral ciphers proving that Bacon wrote Shakespeare; 

he damned that from the start. This was John ·M. Manly. He 

devised a test which would ·test her eyes-whether she really could 

a_· ·forms of' .the· · E and so 

on_ and she failed -the tes.t. However there Were many _very _smart 

people. who devised tests .one of which_made a great 

·sensation.· I 1ll have to lookup the name of the man who devised 

that __ test, he was- quite 
I· I 

in the East, ·n,e ·did a 

a well known Xi.:teTEta:r:ex litterateur 
' whole in a biform type using 

· tw.o kinds of· As, u-st=ng· two kinds of ... alvTays _ 

kinds of Es and so one and Mrs. Gallup SOlved it. But of course the 

I s-uppose one of- the elements of success in an unsolvable 

problem is to know that the answer is there. If you're convinced tha 

the anHwer is there you knoH you 1 ll find it sometime. 

Dr. Pogue: Yes, that sort of gets bad when yoc.. ! ... th-.cre may 

not be an answer. 

Mrs. -Friedman: ...... Mauborgne, and later chief Signal Officer 

was in 1920- and 121 chief of research and in the 

Signal Co'rps. He himself h.;.d invented a number of small things 

..:;;-things is the wrong word, but I don't kno'.'l technical term3 

had invented in with radio;. Esquire himself 

had dnne. And !3-b-ter, this doesn 1 t to do vii th the 
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fviauborgne, I think, was the first man ever :t5. to solve any 
i 11quotes, cryptograpm, in the Army. That was the 

which he did in 1912. 

Dr. Pogue: Were the British informed of this? 

Mrs. Friedman: Oh yes. 
• 

Dr. Pogue: We wouldn 1 t have if it had been German? 

Mrs. Friedman: I can r t make a11 about that. 

Dr. Pogue:Was it complete enough that they changedit? 

Mrs; Friedman·:. Oh, yes. I can r t tell you what, at that time, 

became the· _o-fficial B;ri tish Ann;r C1--pher .I wasn 1 t 

paiticularly intere:sted enough to "inquir_e and if I ever 

just it--I doi-ir.t 

Dr.· Pogue:- They. change them ev-er-y som often anyhow. 
C.o 

Mrs. Yes. and they did, but I don't 

know what .they replaced the Playfair cipher with. I do 

kriow what they attempted to put .into effect al?ng about, 
( 

at the end of World War I, about that time, I thin!; ... 

they proposed ·adoption of what we call the Wheatstone device, 
_,hJ, I 

it was indecipherable.that is 
· disc 

an eccentric, 
l.7 

a concentric, pair of discs.aneYhas t w en-t-'.fS ev-en 

not 

characters on it and the other has 26 characters on it 
ir-

As it moved it made the encipherment very regular, in other 

worl\ds the le.tter E might be !Enciphered by X at this point and 

even three-letters Np on would be enciphered by ani entirely 

different letter because of that eccentric t--\hr hy_, 

Dr. Pogue: That's much harder to break? 

Mrs. Fri"edman: Yes. 

Dr. What letters were left off in the that 
, ,....,-, 
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·- er 
Mrs. Friedman: ·I and J were interchangeable) that was the 

Elizabethan alp!Iabet you see. 

Dr. Pogue: Wet!/ I assumed that they might have left out one of 

those. 

Mrs. Friedman: . Well this 'tested by 

my husband. The b1ri-tish props sed that it be adop!Bed in 

all services that were on the same side. And ·r wish I could 

remember tha date on that, it had to. be At ·any 

rate _I .. rec_all Vf!!YY distinctly the incident when ri:ll. Fabyan 

and_ a man walked in to the office, _the big room Where we were doing 

our work.-.-aP--d I can _remember that m-j husb_a1,1d sat· at the-big 

roll top desk in the corner and "I was about this distance from him 

and abOut this position .from_ that arid I working on ... 

this must have been during World War I because I was working on 
interpreter 

some Spanish with a· Spanish ±xaasiR±Ex right here on 

my right. My husband loklked over to me "and ·said 11 Will You 

do something f'or me? 11 
'.ll 
well anyway I forgot to do say 

. Col. Fabyan strolled with this man and had some 

their hands and I observed that they were talking to 

in 
Mr •. 

Ea:IX Friedman 

over the top of' the roll top desk and didn 1 t .HExexB..fxwxx hear 
r' anything of what \'las said and then ·they myhusband 

inunmediately started working on a ne'd set of papers. Finally after 

some couple of hours of my doing my work and he going on . alone 

at that h e looked and me and said11 Hould you do something for 
\ ,, / 

me?n and· I said 11 Certainly, what is it? 11 He e.aid 'WOuld you lean 

back in your chair and completely and theni 1m going s --., 

a word to you and I want you to come back instantly with the 

" first vrortl that comes into your mind. So I leaned back in my chair 
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and rela£.ed and I said n All right, I 1m ready. 11 He said the 

wordx 11 cipher11 and. I Just like that and it was the 

word. You see thay had 

f'i ve 

imagine on the-

brought as test m_essages) Britisher 

message? .35 letters each. Can you 

front? This ·thing/-this Wheatstone 

device ·was supposed to be c_arried around by troppes) there would 

be al least a day anywhere from 35 letters 
. . .(, !)( . 

up to hundreds of letters. He· was short messages of 35 i;vch· .. .· 
letters hle ke'p"\.t ; he fiddled and and over the 

thing and got parts of' what he _thought was the word cipher ..... ·· .... r .. -.. 
·. f'i tted into ·the one alphabet and ·so •.:.;... iii..D the first was it the 

c . . 
work d:.ipher, and. if ·it was, he woUld have to have another ·.- ;-

word, key word,for the other alphabet .. Well he reasened that 

anybody who ·d_ealt with ciphers was so ign6rant ihatfhe:!J; 

use a WorN which was connected with the subject that they other 

word was connected with the subject too. So he tried everyth 

he could think of. He tried cipher alphabet; he tried •.. I -6n 1 t 
JJ--:•_ !-

recall ... but all the could of ... 

Dr. He didn't think of machine? 

Mrs. Friedman: Well ... you see, he was so much of a ... so particular, -· 

exact 1 particularly in anything that was a technical term or a 
. . it 

scientific term)that h;::.xwould never in the world have entered his 

head to call that thing a machine, that's a divice, that's not a 

machine. 

Dr. Pogue: ·He nlneeded a more imprecise mind. 

N:rs. Friedffian: Yes. D:m 1 t tell me, of course I don't have a 

machine mind. I couldn 1 t ir..vent a machine if my very life 
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and I sae this little tlti.ng, that was the first thing. that came into 

my mind. 

Dr. Pogue: And that was ... 

Mrs. Friedman: Immediately they cliCked.That was it .. In two 

bourse . 
the·answer to those was qn the_telegrah 

wire bac-k to Washington. 
the us of that 

Dr. Pogue: Did they change 

Well .. they just palin didn 1 t use that. Mrs. Friedman: 
. u 

. Dr. Pogue: now _ther__.e was another one :I think I 
. ! . . 

had_ a orf. 

heard Col. Friedman -=-
she said 

talk about. Some woman that"" c oul dn 1. t 
-_ : -. 

be broken and he brOke it. ·' . 

. Mrs: Friedman:· .Well of course it -was }irs.-_X Hitt who broke 

device. . 

Dr. Pogue: No-this was latter thing. 

Mrs. Friedman: Oh I that was the Hebern machine. The Hebern 

machine, I don 1 t ihink we 1 ve got one here ... That was .Agnes 

whe was a mathematic an who ·had been sent by the Navy out ._to 

Riverbank for Mr. Friedman to train N in cryptanalysis, crypt-

ography and cryPtanalysis. While she was in the Navy 

Department, along tame this man Hebern who invented this machine 

which he said went to something like 80 billion combinations. 

If the letter 

the" rotors on 

E was encKphered by 
(. 

machine, there 

K in a definite positonin 
,)·J I 

were five of them, it would 

to go through 80 million before that E iWuld be 

have 

enciphered tn the position by the K. The combinations, 

in other .words were considered infinite arJ..:i the chances of dec::i.pl 
c-·: .• th pt(' .. "r':!,' __ 

ment W€cpe·:·· •. well it was absolutely ;i-ndecipherable. They had ap-

pointed a Navy board to devise a ne•,.,r cipher system for destroyers anc 
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Navy :RR.dx as .one official cr;y-ptographic system for the Navy. 

Agnes M'i\yer, this woman mathematican, she had a PhD. in 

m'atematics, was a person who thought only of furthering herself, 

so left the NaVy and went with Hebern, the developer of -the 

machine because the Navy had a_ppoint'ed a coffirnittee of which 

Admiral Smith was the head of a board of five Navy officers 

to "decide on whether the Navy would buy this machine or h c, -'\-. 

and they had_kplanned to have enough_ of them built to 

try them 9ut _·on the n:ot. a very great number 

at ·time. He bern went back to California and 

-Start_ed building the machipes 1 .Agne·s Meyer established a 

office .in the Muncy Building and left -the Navy 

That 1 s how .I got into the Navy cryptographic work;· they couldn it J. inC 

anYbody-to Bale her place. I didn-1 t. want-!-o 
I 

work for the Navy, 

but theY were just sitting on my doorstep all the time and 

the only way to get rid of them was to go there for·a-littie 

While _until they found someone. else. ·Time went on and one moring_ 

I this is a very stroGrecollection of minei this Admiral 

Smith lived somev;rhere in our nieghborhood. We were living at the 

end of Mt. Pleasant Street, Park Road as you ±N 

go down into Rock Creek Park, that was the end of that part of 
rode 

Washington at time. .And he do':ffi with us in the car.· 
1 h( 

and the Munitions Building were on Consitution Avenue 

right next-- door to each other. I remember so distinctly one 

roaring Admiral Smith 

"' this He bern -Nachine? 

tlj -!-., 
saying 11 Did e..nyp_;:l.-e· ever ask you to test 

Have you ever seen it or tested it?u 

and My ·husban d said uNo. u Before the day vras over the NaVJ 
e called the Signal Officer and- instructed that this 
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cipher machine without knowing anything about it -what the 

messages were, where they came from, where they were going ... 
---

&omewhere there is a picture of him sitting before that 

Hebern machine ... he did many times ·that he was 

discouraged to point· of blackout. p·rababiy that he sat for 

six weeks before that machine before he of a way·to 

attack it, but he' did attack it, he did sililve the E.essages. 
- _., ... I 

There again when they would be sending many hundred messages 

a daY with that machine, they gave his. a ±est- of 
!'...... ! .:: ' • ' > 

·like-_ten of _25 WQ-F4f>---each,· or something ],.ike that • 
. · 

I t was ·all resolved in :the end by ·what Could be called 

the fndex of by putting all .these letters on ·strips 
·r 

of.paper apd them back and forth. Until some Phenomenon 
.. · ,-<•rl· 

arises in one column and another Phenomenon here and_here 

finally _you work away at it. You will read in literature, of ,. (/ 

course_J that the "index of eoincidence was :the thing that all 
· · -

· th_e extremely. modern Sifienc_.e of W was. lauhchect 

with that· paper of he wrote out a RiVerbank wheTI he was, 

what you might1 say a beginner. 

Dr. Pogue: Around 1917 ot 18? 

Urn-urn. 

Dr. Pogue: Let me clear up just two or three points. Do you 

remember Smith's first name? Admiral Smith? 

Mrs .. Wriedman: I think it's William. 

Dr. Pogue": And what was Hebern's first nc:.,e? 

XOC.Mrs, Friedman: There are around here 

have his name , iSn't iat funny it just what come to me knov;. 

Dr. Pogue: At one point you mentioned 80 million a.'1d another one 
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make it So mill-ion, that's staggering enough 

and I'm not sure which it is frankly. 

Dr. Pogue: And about what time was that in the 20's or 30's? 

Mrs. Fridman: His solution of the Hebern machine came in-1923 
• 

Dr. Pogue: That Is the year you: were at me Nav::r? 

Mrs. Friedman: I was at the Navy five months. 
I "'> ;> 

..:...-' o I 
Dr. Pogue: In only or part .of 22 and 23. 
Mrs. Friedman: Now I ·don 1 t remember ._whether I went _there before 

Christmas or not, I might have been there-say_November and 

there in eai-ly sp-ring. · · _ . 
. . . . 

Dr.Pogue: .This is the sort of biographers 
. . 

Decembe_r and left 

like to 

clear up. 

Mrs.· Friedman:- But I reme:mber ;J-923 very specifically. I knmv 

I 1m not mistaken about ·that. Now whether I was therefor two 

months say in ·1922 also, I don't remember. But poor ol-d Hebern. 

·):ou know.the Navy'had appropriat.ed, I don't know if this should 

be recorded or 'repeated ... 

Dr. ·Pogue: If_you have that ·warning on it that takes care of it. 

Mrs. Friedman: The Navy . . were going to him 50 million 

dollars, no,it wasn't that ... they weren't going to pay him that 

much either, but they were going to pay him very good size 

swn1 you see. ·And then when the whole thing fell through, the 

Navy didn 1 t pay He bern anythihg,. Jl.nd you can imagine that he 
rJJ }-

was in debt. He a very reputable me..."l. He had 

been jailed as a hor_se thiefbr something or other, at some time 

in his l{fe oUt in California. So he had used stock holders 

really to raise the money to build that fa12tory where he was 
---- ..._, __ .... .... 
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$75,000 to buy machines and he never got a penny. And-

he did expend a lot of money and so on. After he died1 his 

estate sued the· Navy for ._$50,000,000, and I think,_;:-, 1 1m not 

abs_olutely sure of the sum_; but I think what the Navy_ finally 

got the estate to settle for, settl_e it 1 
• 

maybe the Navy just gave them $50,QOO. 

Dr .. Pogue: . Well, quite often that happens when they· figure that 

somethi:ng needs be ·to paid. ·And then of c·ourse the 

get in on it. He never di'd any further work in this kind 

m'achine? He\::-x>YI"\· -;. 

Mrs. -Fi'iedman: Hebern, no. That was .-the ·only _thing.-· . He developed 

<:iw·o i i. was a five wheel machine -when- he fir'st 
. ft . 

brought it to the then I think he deVeloped a form 

with 
, ___ -· --- But today I-- suppose there _are · 

. . . - ·(' I . _._. . . r ., (' y-; p· u . 

many-machines which resemble 
• -f ,-:I } 

the · The Hagelin1 -used those 

rotors. And they pave had didfferent numbers of roptors 

in the differerit models of machines. Now that.1 s a case of 

. ·where a government ·service, in this' Case the Army, really 

made a man many times over a millionaire, plus ·the fact tnt 

he supplies partically every country in world with their 

official cipher machines.;_ I don 1 t know should be said 

aloud or for publication but I know because we came 

to know Hggelin very well because the Army dickered vri th him for 

a long long time.After the Hebern thing fell through 1you see; 

the Army was trying to get some kind of a keyboard machine 

that was ·portable. That A. T & T printing machine Has 
. ·, 

safe thing it vms proved in the end by the use of a single key 6 ) 
tape to be utterly 'but who! s going around to carry a 

. \ c, r , 
...__,__, ..... ;..,"".,.. rlo::o1rirP hili as that blue desk there? 
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So the Hagelin machine came up and I was mixed up in that 

picture only en_ough, only to this extent, that when Hagelin's 

representatives in the United States, tr,m yoU;ngish men, one 

· :the of Kirk Paulding and the other stuait Hedden, whose 

name must be to you. 

Pogue: Yes) you the thing. 

Mrs.. Friedman: They came ·to see me ·selling the Hagelin 

mq.chines ·and--'I said 11 Why the Treas ... we don't ·need a machine 

.like that "orle.You· invent a machine that breaks other peoples - . .. . . 

·,·... .,ciph_ers · an<t ·we' d. be s·O far as the -TreasurY . _ ... _ 

_::i erne d t · .b -;: !. em. n 

: • :. s. very- ..• '- ': -___ -__ · -
. -.--. : •. _·.Mi:s.· .. ·.theY .wen:t" ATinY-.: and that went 

-.:_:-:···-·· -·-.- --- ,:. --- ·-- -· -- ·'.-'·· .. -,-:· ____ 

on for and tests arid tests _and · .. And r·might as well 

.. 

say it r"ight here because it's apr9pos of this story, when 
. -}'I 

·my was_ that reallY brea..l-cdo'-wnJ which was 

nothing more or less than exha-sUtionJ after _the solution of 
" 

purple: -code and w8.s a•.1ay from the office, . out of the o:fTice, 

General Harold Hayes, who was a youngster really, was the head 
. . . ' 

of the chief Signal Officer at that time: and he 

said, he told the Army supply Corps ... 

TAPE # 3 
·Mrs. Friedman: .... _ was so burned t,m ·that I wrote four long - . ,, I .. ,. _. ., . . · .. t. i'i c· • .J· ,; · '/ 1(-:·1 1·/11 ;! ; -, . pages legal size, /:·•.. "· ...... ----: 

On. David Kahn's (garbled) 
Dr. Pogue:· .) I think it is imoortant to put 

. (garbled)r."s .. trong personal feeling 
do\lrn that you t him a!"l.d you don't 

. • 
think he is a trickster like you do__..ibc::l:..l::J.) 

i . 



.. --·- .. .{----. (1,1' I 
, ... , ! ·r . ,, ............ 

l'r; · ·r·· · 1 
. ! I '-· 

I 
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... (garbled) ... but othen;lise I. .. (garbled) ... 

- ::· ... -

-.. _. 
·"' -· --- ' •·( I J / '• .-._. '•! ',' .•• ,,,·• _,;·· ',·_.:,· ." .··.-· /\.' .·:· •'' 

Dr. Pogue: ..... 'and then return to the Friedmcm 

interview, hoNeVer I have done this in such a way that it will 

not inte_rfer with. -.Jl!.L (OH(Jrj_( ... r... ;<J 

.-:;:-

. 1,.{'. ((,l '--

Dr. of what you talking about t_t-:"L"-1- {(.---: 

ended here t1 1 (IF I"?:('{!-) ,:: · • ·r J .. ·;·_,, /-
• •,;. - J ...... -

- • I' • f1,:r.•Y:-' · -
Mrs. Friedman: I think General was a very 

. · c!ut{ u-: '--, 
at that time.V..ihe had had some cr;yptologic YOW1g man, but was 

c. 
was ·a young Oaptain, training under my husband, when he 

tr.kt.:U- .orr'fL.vyc-c . 
and he , w.i--t-h my husband away and in the hosital, gave the· 

" - -· . - . ·. . ·_ . ,.: (;_,(t_('.U ::(..: -order for· the purchase of Hagelin came __ to 
· . . · · ' · · . · b:.u{ec·!.. .. fJ 

know 'the 'Hagelin Is rather intimately vh_. frienM and acquiantances0-
' . . . . ·.l----

and they_ h8.d been caugh_t in this cOuntry.....,... had come over on the 

trip Of the SwayS.--(?) and could not get _back to 
· /{I.JL(_I'V;.&, . . 

-S>>Teden a.."'ffi- lived here all during tpe war, up in Connecticut ... 

i 
.. / 

', 
( 

. ' 
/ . ' 

, ... poor strugglinT 

inventor wh-.)had hired Hagelin we::s Hagelin as 

a rich m.;:tn to do this,·h€ .himself was an inventor and his siory 

th;,t he •:'? '; tire follm-1er up of .CC:nrn, 

he foll'doed him_ the 

the great S:,·redish cryptogra;;her-

Dam.'TI proper_ties were bought 

by Hagelin. D:•.mm died very early in that deal that rm·et on for 
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· .;Hagelin has a bg .. 

factory and it's ahmys working and they are always developing ne•11 th" 

Dr. Pogue:· The.factory is in this country? 

Mrs. Friedman:No the factories are in Si·ritzerland, ::t:ri Zug, on . I 

Lake· Zug. He is no longer active in the factories or the 

cipher machines. It 1 s all been orgainzed very efficently and, so 

on. Unfortunately, the only child that Hagelin had,the only 

offspring' that 

this field and 

,, ' ,,. 
he had 1was attempting to become 

foJ· '· carry it on, was killed in this 

profficent in 

country in an 



' '· 

1}' r··- .,-·::-
·' ' , I. 

automobile accident and so it the wholejHagelin brhsiness, 
1-hL r'.l(l"•' b:d- -I • • 

is carried on by a board and IVdon't recall the naffie of the . . 

Styrenyberg ·, 8-T-Y-R-E-N-Y-B-E-R-G, 

" he is a Swedish engineer, and he..t:s the head of the factory a.:1d 
_Ike_- c 

all the development. And they go on something new every . ' 

year practically. 

Dr. Pogue: Well, you have to keep ahead of the people that 
. 

are trying to solve it. Now when we were yeaterday 

S:bout work on 

I never quite 

the purple·machine we didn't finish 
. Cfe<Cii•.( · . -

understood what Saffdd contributed to this. 

one thin 

· Mrs. Friedman: My nndestanding _is that the _actu_aJ.ly. solution 

was entirely Signal Corps. Later ·they .shared>. rhe Navy of . ' . 

tis but)r·may be wrong, but as! recollect it
1 
there were 

· no Navy p-ersonnel in· that group that Were actually workilfg toward 

that· Once it was done, a 

Army-Najperati.on, _-iJn certain days of the week the Navy received 

all the messages and deciphered them and delivered them • On_3 

the other days the week-·the Army/ Military Int_elligencef: .... the 

.-Signal Corps .El.id the actualq work of decipherment, but the 
,1 ({o:Al 

Hilitary Intelligence had the distribution of the messages. They 

were turned over to this Kramer, who died just a few 

months ago, in the Navy and he was i?caarge of the delivery. 

Thjy wer.tdelivered to only five peiple, the Secretary of the 

Navy, Scretary Of the Army, the President, of course,- first 
,., r'r I Jl f{.c 

of all, thSec:tetary of I remember, I can 1 t thin};: 

who the fifth one ·was. Deivd Kahn goes into that q1J.ite ... 

creates ·quite a long picture of it which h-= certainly never 

got from .• 



' ' 

__ ;_:....:._ _____ - ( 

J Mrs. Frie drnan: Yes, Well now 1'l'he worked entirely from 

unclsassified material. 

Dr. Pogue: I.t 1 s spelled out in the pearl Harbor hearings 
"-· . 

In fact that messe..ge of the qth was part ey the 
. ..,;::;b;t .. u•!.: P._ 

Navy :and part oY the_ Anny after it Came to the central· ... I mean-:r 

intelliegence. For example Bratton was supposed to deliver 

it tO the C.lilief o f' -i:fl_G-2, the Army _G-2, _Plans, 

I believe he Hu;tl his c-opy and Kramer gave it tq 'the 
President deli verea- it to stark, 
. · , • · 1 rj - · -· · 
Ingersoll .not ·can 1 t think· of- ·ather name, 

any how NavY -G-3, and whoever -their-2 was, nOw whether that 

was Ingersoll br .not I don.'t know. But the Army opposit_es. 

And the man gave it to Knox and I think possibly delivered 
fO . . . 

it •.. ·r don't know Bratton or who delivered it to Stimson. 

By .the n_ext morning
1 
before they ever got Marsh8.1l every othe: 

11 
person to whom this inofrmation was trasmitted had .it.-apd his 

,i\! t 
presence became crucial because he_ is the only one who when he got i· 

did anything about it. And yet you'd think from all the hullabaloo 

made ab9ut where he was that he was the only who could 
ll 

send message, when actually the G-2 of the Army 

and s"fimson, with Stark had sent a message on the 27th of November. 

But its very peculiar. 

Mrs. Friedman: The Army lines ·that went up through Alaska 
' .. ,., ") ,<,\1<'- ;j ( I ' •' 

cro::ed 

to Honolulu were out of order I remember. Pnd French, Col .. French, 

who was in· charge of the Signal Corps, made that idiotic decisic 

to send .it by Union. I 1 ve often v1ished, everytime 

anyone says Pearl Harbor, I get a picture of that boy trundling 

down the raods and strets in ridir.g that bicycle , 



.. 
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the 

Dr. Pogue: finally he was dodging bombs. So he stayed in 

the ditch a gooN part of the time. But I can't understand French 

doing it when according to all- the .Bratton came 

back and _third time to ask . if it it was 

quite clear that ·there was priority on the messag_e. 

Mrs. Friedman: Well novl you s"ee how the services protect their own. 

To use an expression that was coined for some other 
f 

:PD:rpose, but I ·thought at the timet.;;· I would have. choked ·French. 

-Dr. -Pogue: Becaus_e after ali he must have realized from the 

nature of the ?-ocument,..,.-. he_ didn r t ·have to have anybody tell him: 

to get it right out. Just""eeading it, and I assume the man didn't 

turn it over to somebody without at it ... 
• "' (1<; . (' • 

Dr pggue: · I _knew French and I certainly never cons.idered him a 

heavYweight, he was distinctly a light.-.we.ight brain in my .estimation. 
"' 

Arld then in all that Pearl Harbor investigation in Cdmgress, how 
c. .. 

pe.ople could dedeive them.selves. Sadler, Colonel Sadler, went over 

there and testified. He afterward regretted that yery much. He 

·apologized to me personally once. 

Dr. Pogue: His testimony of course attempted to say that he 
r 

had gotten misleading testimony from Colonel that ... 

what was the story that ... it's the only part that Colonel 

Friedman testified on, not,in the regular Feral Harbor 
. 

but there was an.r::J_Y\(.TJ'''/ ,, · 
Mrs. Frie&nan: Yes, that earlier one 

Dr. ... and he was asked to, this particular story was on-= - " >"1' '\;?",..... 
that they were burning G-2 material and Said that 

'( r / f 
Colonel Friedman had told him, 'an-j when it was tracked do':rn 



' -

what he 1 d said he 1 d heard this rumor, but that he kne1.; 

it wasn't go. You see, in other words, he mentioned it only 

ta··deny it. Bu±: on the basis of' this it goeR back -through{; 

five people and it had come ·up in the·_ inquiry and I still see 

repeated, that Marshall had already had the 

. I deal it in part in this -volume of the 

stuff destroyed. _,. . 
j >. ·q i1 1 

book. vrtr s pointed /-!;.' • 

out that -three or four _Senators came to see ::t.ke.xGom.ax:al Stimson 

and Stimson said 11 I know all· about it, I authorized these duplicates 
• .:: o T . ,, 

rid Of to .-find the ·space. That brings ·a 

we mpst as well put down here. One of the question --she aSks .-

clari_fy the pOint of Colonel ·Friedman being tOld not to 

testify,. or not allowed to testify in 'the inquirY held in 

1944 or 4s. 
Mrs. Friedman: Do you mean the Congres?ional inquiry? 

Dr. Pogue: ·Yes. 

Mrs. Friedman: true, he w:rnot allowed to testify in 

that one, but he had testified in the one. Robertson 

Report, is that what it was called? 

Dr. Pogue: · No 1 the very first one was the Roberts.· · 

Mrs. Friedman: Roberts.,. 

Dr. Pogue: Roberts Inquiry and then this other thing he testified 

on before one man, I think Carter Clark ca.':le and interrogated 
' " twelve or fifteen people about this one thing.-but I think that's 

the only time his testimony, well it's int!oduced in the Congressiu .. a.l 
\j'J\ ·-'·\ \ 

Inquiry, ·but I assume the point!:here is th:;y were they'd 

get on qnestions about the working of the machine. 
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secret must be protected above life and everyt_thng else. 

Dr. Pogue: We got off a minute ago about Safford. I thought 

Safford got for work on the purple machine itself?· 

Mrs. Friedman: That doesn't sound right to me. I wonder if that 

got mixed up with the story_ of" the money for the SIGABA machine. ---· 
Dr .. Pogue: It may well have·done. 

Mrs. ·Friedman: Because Admiral Wenger andmy husband were very 

very· close, . they were like brothers really. Even their 

physical lives were almost like twin brothers, The story ?f their 

heart abnormalities was almost identical Wenger _diad eleven. 

months after Mr. Frj,.edman, t11e. same type of thing. all the way 

through the . He. was the "bright,· bright·; really ·-brainy 

· p_erson ever in c.harge ·anywhere in cOmmunications. in ihe Navy 
'.· 

Department and I' happen to have a little bit of personal knowledge 

and .I meant bothEx Wenger and ·2± 8afford when I was with the.Navy in 

that briefi period in 1923. K do know· that years and years and year 

my husbanli told me, and this is the oniy thing 

he ever _told me in connection with any communications system 

of anybody; no matter who, what .D department, it \'ras not the 

usual husbanli -wife thing telling the wifte things at night that 

worry you and so on, my husband never never open his mouth about 

anything, I din 1 t even know about the invention of theSIGll.BA/ 

But it was ·the SIGABPB machine that the Navy furnished a lot of mane: 

for. Wenger was an· inventor of .sorts and my husband \'tas a."'l inventor 

par eRcellence and he had devised this machine getting the , 

totor according to David Kahn, from Hebern Eagelin and 

all those people. Hell my husband didn't need to get ideas from . 
other People. But never the less he did develope this rotor machine 

<>nr1 t.hP nir"knAmP of' it in the Arrn.Y, I can't rem<.:mber 
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referred to as the SIGABA. My husband did tell me this one thing. 

That one day he and Wenger, they almost invariably had lunch together 

and one day at lunch he was lamenting to Admiral Wenger, he wasn r t 

Amiral then, commander or that he had invented this 

machine but the Signal corps didn't anY money and they didn't 

·seem to be able to get any money for ti and that Wenger,. my husband 

told me had siad to him 11 Well why don't we see if .we can 

coop.eratie, the ·Navy _has the ·money but we don r t have a machine 

we· do·nOt _have any comparable or any ideas-for one. 

So why not e.evelope it has an int8rdepa'rtment8.1 and 

the furnis_hri the the money and you _fu_rnish the 11 
• 

-And tha's what was done, where the money, it Wasn't. 

for any machine to « solve anything, it was for SIGftBA machine 

which became the. off'icia.l cipher .of the Amy, the Navy rmfl 

everybody else all during the war. 

Dr.Pogue: Did Safford have anything to do with that? 

Mrs. ·Friedman: Safford became, when I left the in l923, 

Safford had juSt reported there to be the chief offieer, I've 
forgotten his rank at the time, it couldn't have been more that 

lieutenant commander if that high, He was the head of that cryptogra-

phic, they didn't use the word cryptanalytic then, but htat 

section of communications, that had to do with all cryptographic 

and cryptabalytic ·workS afford b.ecame the head of that. Wenger 

had been there before Safford came. soon after left and 

I don't remember where Vienger went !Bar a vrhile. But my personal 

opinion, .and I Suppose I should request not to be quoted on thi3 

if I value my life is that Safford is a nincompoop. You kmr 

he was always inventing little flubdedubs and gadgets of one 
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soul, that was where my office was located although I served the 

whole Treasury _Departp1ent, the six law enforcement bureaus, 

athe young men, I had very bright X& young men, one of them 

at least had a very good inventive mind, as Safford used 

to send over thes€ things that he had 

devloped or invented and my young men started saying 11 Another 

Rube .Goldberg vee has come. -Have to look into ·this. 11 And 

Safford was known as the Rube Goldberg of_ the day. His going 

in and a $loo,ooo, or what ever he could have gotten out 

·he .would have taken more of course, on the·groUndS that 

··he 'd inVented this and that wa:s just sheer ... well .I can't think. 

of a to describe it ... it. _was so brash .. He ¢ouldn't prove 

anything ·except that he had some strips that slid up and dmm. 

But hA knP.w it woul dn 1 .t be questioned. M.Y husband had written 

you see my husband was not allowed to have ala1vyer except to 

do the leg work, and. he wrote his own for Congress on 

that award and he ·aid such a· masterful :aNXXX, job and_ la;.yyers 

who were cleared afterward who read it said 'that it was an 

absolute masterpiece that nO lawyer could have done it as well. 

Well, that settled it for Congress for alltime. Here was the 

master 1 s voiee spea.-k:.ing and Safford comes along and claims that he 1 c 

done some of these things .and was very vague about· vrhat they 

were and so he gets $100,000 taD. Pnd then there was a third guy, 

who was that that got the third prize, they used this mar-

velous brief which my husband had write!l which la'..ryers said 

was better than andy lavryer could have done. 

Dr. Pogue: Had he mentioned their work on it in his brief? 

Mrs. Friedman: No. 
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Dr. Pogue: Well they must have had very good friedds in 

Congress to push their case. 

Mrs. Friedman: Well they did. you _see, Safford got 

Saltonstall , Safford and h wife both came from New England 

orignially and they had a swnmer hamEl up 

Saltonstall to introduce thiers. But my 

there. So they got 
wasn r t known to 

husband N±NNXXxkNNN 

·anybody he'd never paid any attention to Congressmen or Senators 

·in anyway Tbe only function that the. lawyer performed for 

; him was to find. a_ qongressmep to· intr9duce the bill and to run 

on l_egWork .•• the lawye;r wasn r't allowed to see anything. 

Dr. Pogue: Who introduced it for Colonel Friedman? 

Mrs. Friedman: I can't remember. 

·nr. Pogue: I suppose I can findthat in the Congressional Record. 

I'm just thinking of things Clark might not know to look up 

because I think this is of interest. 

Mrs. Friedman: Well that would be one thing that he wouldn't ... 

pr. Pogue: I'll just put down here that the Congressional Record 

of that period will show it. When was this 1 48? 

I remember when the award was made. 

Mrs. Friedman: I think it was later than that. 

Dr. Pogue: because it would still have been very touchy, wouldn' 

it? In to even talk about the thing publicly because for 

several yEiars they didn't even want it discussed in any way. 

Mrs. Friedman: I'm trying to remember if it was before or after 

he was retired. At the moment I can't remember. 

Dr. ·I expect that it would have to come after he 1·rC.:s 

retired or somebody would bring up the question that this 

belonged to the government any'tray. 



- - ___ __,____-

Dr. Pogue: This was just a matterof recognizing the contribution 

Mrs. Friedman: I sent R. D. Parker to the patent office within 

the last few months to find out \Vi th his clearance, hers 91 

years old, but he's till a consultant to NSA 1 and an inventor 

himself of course. He looked up the Jvrr. Friedman's 

patent files, bathe general·,"and I h€ was able ·to see the 

·secret file ·too. He .said and R he said it with an air of 

· gre_at surprise11
· Why· there are just any_ number of -things of Bill's in·· 

there that _are still secret. 11 Now I- would never be pe.nnitted 

4o know thatof course. I r"lioulan't be given access to. 

in "the ·Office ·tha:t would reveal that. 'But "·, 
. ____ "-· ._-. -- _,_-,.-. 

···kthat·' s what -D.· told _me himself. I _-sen· t hini :to look 
- :·:::.:;--;- -_.•_ .. --·-· 

sPecific thingi• d c·ome across some ·in· _8. · .. folde; :'o_f 
---. ,- ----:-·-·_:_ , .. ::;/?:::-,:'--; -:'.t .. -_ .· ---· 

·_ hli.sl?ankd --marked and of course the only riotes · ·-- _. 
•; -.-. .-·. -

that w,er€ -in thei!f were about things. tli'8.t no_t classified 
11 secret 11 but aniong them I saw mention of ss>mething that puzzled me 

and I hadn'g known about. it before but heaven-knows there's a lot 

more I haven't heard of than I have heard of because my hUsband 

was so faithful to his oath. But I came across this 

mention of a pa_tent which I would call a multiple carrier 

trasmi.ssion line and he hd devleoped andinvention way back in 1920, 

118 ot 'k9, I think, that a message on radio thru the air could 

carry more, .. a trasmission line could carry more than one 

message at a time, say as many as three things could be trasmitted 

at the same time on the same radio wave and still besroted;· out at 

the end anq come out as a whole, each separate and in its field. 

That interested me greatly and that r s what I sent R. D. to fi_nd out 

about and it- is there. My husband did invent it and the papent 
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all during both._warsJ with the government just handing over to 

them whatever knowledge that government had1 methods 

they had in any field were all handed over. ·sa 

that cleared up one point for me. That was·one of the inventions 

they were ... that was covered in the .!10 .cailed11 biil for relief11 

. of' the $lOO, 000. 

·Dr. Pgie: I. would get that stipula"t:ed. Becuase I kn.ow this was 

used iri WWII but he developed· it, ·got the patent before WW II 

-by· some_ years'Z _-

Friedman: _YesP ye_a I think· it was right_ after WW I 

•.• ·.· · .. '<.±.think the' final patent was . -- . -
.wis -.okayed in 1924, -__ :. 

_:_,· ·::". ---: 

.-.' -.·<_if _·r r:emembe·r ·right .. 
·-·-. ... _:_. . 

.. ·.- .. - ;_"· . .-.··. 
··. :-_.-· ·.--

. . -.-
• : < • 

Pafiue:· .At this 'paint let's go back to 'the Riverbarlk 
. .... 

.. ·-. f . 

and add some things to what you've _told me.' You mentioned -period 

of course something about the do Col Fabyan and how 

_you came to go there and how Col.·Friedman -came and your 

meeting in __ l916., when you first went there. Was this Fall? 
Mrs. Friedman: · 

It Was in the summer_, 1916. 

·· ··Dr. Pgoe: and Col. Friedman had been there several months by this 

time, or had he come in '15? 

Mrs. Friedman: I think he was there in '15. 

Dr. Pogue: Did you work closely together during that first year? 

Or did that come after? 

Mrs. Friedman: W 11, he carried on his genetics work and wOrking 

all 'the Mendelian 1-?:..r suing the friut fly as the experimental 

device 8nd slo planting oats by moonlight and other slightly 

out of the regular line kine of experiments. But he became 

-; nt_o::>ro::>c:t.Pr'l in t.hP hi 1 i b::•r::1l rinher because Col. Fabyan d!f;scoY.ered 



that he was a very, very fine photographer. so· Col. Fabyan got 

the. idea that if phtographs could be taken of italic type 

pages out of the Shakespeare books, they could be enlarged and the 

characteristics of the'two· forms of A and E and all the 

other le-tters of ·coul-d be studied in enlarged fornis · 

so that was extracirricular with He Still carried on his 

geri:tics work. 

Dr. Pgoue: The cryptographiC thing 

wci"rked some tini.e. ·tor Fabyan?. 

after he had 

Mrs .. Fiiedman: . About· a ·Ye"ar. -He 1.d .-bee.ri the.Z.e at least at yar 
-

···-(. Col_-: =an· this· _De came ·a 
, ... : · :·:-:"::.-::·,-<:<-- _ :"·-'' " __ ,.· _ ,, __ . . ·: .. ·c . ._, ,-;_,: .- --_,--
-' -sort ·of f'act_otum for cOl. Faby8:n 'g8.ve univerSity_-· 

-... -. --.--·-:::_ .. -_> --·.::_ .. . : ·-"-" . -- ___ -.____ -- ,:·_">·-'}:i:_:·<.--- . _ .. _ 
-.-_--press 'out· the!e·_-.and .he-_ 1 q_" "J:;heSe slide---} _ _.:;:: 

. . . . . ·-.. ___ -·.·_.,-· 

had· ffiy husb-and developiflg aJ..l. these latern slides 
•.- ': 

and _they._got the for -the Screen and the giving 

of talks- which they 1 fl give to even a sii-lgl·e ·pe:r;-sona and run 

-that , well the ·lecture. through orl the screen so 

that he was busy many many many hours a_ day .because, ·_up _until 

-we were actually· in coriflict in-the war, he carried on all his 

genetics work as the other ... all 

Then all the gentics work was dropped when we began to 

·actually d 6 officail war work for the government. \'le did all 
olc,.,r, 11 

the_deciphereing anddecoding forvaepattments of governemtn 

Dr. that business of the tye it seems to me that with 

the poor type they muxt have used in those days a..'l.d the 

that you couldn't get the best cases in which to put it, it seems th' 

would b.e·"quite a ·problem of decideng rrhether x.a}r.e..a.'\. or not shade 

of type ... 
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C and D and ·E a.Tid op down the line and it was always in the italic ty· 

and did ha:elittle and and so on, 

there were Ril:f, definitelY: differences But the whole. po_int was 

were their only two· _ahd thai:; vcculd nevernever be proved_. and 

you Mrs. Gallup and _you ccpldn't convince Col 

Fabyan. that ail-of those forms·of wich there were, well there 

might be as. m_any. ans six or ti±±i:.R. different sorts of little 

. __ of same · "b 1 s · you would find .... .... 

·-.. 
TAPE# 4. ·-- .· ... - : .·: . . 

':- _. -.. : : ':- .-"-_ .. ,_ ';<· ·_ 
' . . .. : ·- ,_ . .. - -. . . ' - .. ' 

··we were .talking :tlo: about. the :ii'act 1930 .·• ... i: c· . •·· 

:·.'-.--.-

_, ... -. · .. - .· .. · .. · __ ·';-,-.--., ,-_:::-..---· ·: --- __ 
__ hUsband got· the 'two _people With_ ally training _., ···- ··· 

. -- . ' . . . "\" 
·--as assitsants ·_and- beof're that time yoU _-said he had an ex-prize 

as a .typists_ as a ·typsiS.t_s 8.!ld all that. · 

Mrs. Friedman: And that was the only he hMx had. 

Dr. Pogue: And then you mentioned. three young helpers •• 

Mrs. Friedman: The third one .. i ·ju-st going to tell you about 
f.:" y-Q'{\ \::. -

was a man named RaJph ... ..... senator from Georgia 

and a graduate of' a college in si there more than one? 

Dr. Pgoe: is ·the best ... 

Mrs. Friedman: Emory, that's it. fr!l At any rate he had an inventive 

and an inventive ability of' a.limited area and it was he 

whose· name- was put on applications for :a-patents on one o:r; 

two possibly three inventions ana he stayed1 well they all 
'I, jl \{ k. 

stayed the organization tnat was built up beginning in 

1936 and going on through, finally culminating in NSA and both 

Dr. Sinkov and Dr. resigned at the end of 30 years 



.. ' - ., 
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' ' 
nepattment of Statistics at George Washington University 

and Dr. Sinkov· became the head of the matematical and statiscal 

department at the Unviersity of Arizona. 

D_r. Pogue: What -are their first names? Rowit;ette stayed on 

didn'_t he? 
. . 

Mrs. Friedman: ·Frank Rowle.tt_.· Dr .. Kullbak. and 

Dr. ·Abraham 8-I-N-Ko-V. They Were both from New York 

City and had their doctors degrees before they c_ame to Mr. 

Friedman . 

. Dr. Pogue: -Well-·that gave hirh some excellent assitance. 
. . 

-.--- ___ · · Mrs.-- ·Friedman: Yes. And the:n they began. building up an 

.. that- in. the .'39'S. it bec-ame .. ·.I _Would hestitate 

) . . -" ·nrune the 'iiulnber of ·people that he had in the -personnel 

up to about when the thing began .. to leap upwards and took on . 

hundreds of people. 

Dr. ·Pogue: Now let r s go back :rum. topick this up- when he came 

back f'rom France_ and later I' 11 take on the French exper_ience 

You told me some about that yesterday but I think we_ need to go 

int-o ihat alittle more. The very first thing that if' you've never pu 

it done, what was the .date of your marriage? 

Mrs. Friedman: We were married on May 21, 1917. 

Dr. Pogue: before he went over peas probably? 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes: He went overseas I guess within two months 

No I think he went sooner than that. 

Dr. Pgoue: ·He wne·t when the first «ontingents went in June :'J.7. 
.. · 

took along on the Baltic, I don 1 t knmT if he wnet 

on the Baltic or not, but he took along a smallish staff ... 

Mrs. Friedman:· Actually, when he went over he went over alone 



that he was on, he didn r t join and he wasn't with 

any higher ranking officer or anything and he was only a 

first lieutenan·t. you know 

Dr. Pogue:· How lOng had he been in unifonn? you told me yeaterday 
that most of them at gone before he was more or· 
Mx.s:xxX.x:i..e:.illin.a:lu: less turned loose by Col .. Fabyan.· 

. ' 
Mrs. I don't think he could have bean in uniborm 

more a copule ofmonths if that. 

Dr. Pogue: Well there Was no training they could give him 

except for.:_teaChing him how .to and anything __ was 

had bee·n. --

·.-,_.----- , -.doirlg -the wo'rk:threr ci.t Riverbank.,--·been training them and he ·r.----- .. ·-.-. ._, --. - . 
. <; .. ·.· .... '- .. - _:: . . . . ' .. ,- _-=.: ··:: _ .. _:·· __ ... : 

--:_; .-,, :· _-. 

had bee en· :of_ ._the ""chief. ins true tors, he?.- ___ ;;_-.;:;: . _ 

,, --- ---. --

.· __ 
.-:: .. :-- . -.- . -' ... ·, ,_. -- - ,_ . 

Well :nobody in this country kBew 
_ _.. . - ·.'" 

anything about subject.· 

'Dr •. --pogue: -Well, I remember he told that this -was one reason 

that some Of thOse early things of his were still classified, that 

.they were still repeating them. 
·Mrs. F . 
. ·That'S -right. 

Dr. Pogue: and that there was a lecture he gave repeatedly to 

newcomers or Something of the sort ... · 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes. 

Dr. did he tell me thathe wrote regualtions for thJ 

handling· of thesEX«EnRs security of these codes and all that. 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes he did. That was when Mauborgne was chie-f' 

Signal Officer and my husbanli of course was a civilain. He did 

write, I.-don't knov1 if he wrote all of them or not, but he 

certainly wrote many of them. 

n,....-;.,,.... wPnt vnn to GHQ, it was not set up 
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immediately but. very soom after Pershing went over he began to 

organize this foree and as you said he and Hoorman .ea!!l.z: headed 

two sections ... · 

Mrs. Friedman: No, Moorman was the overall head and he didn 1 t do 

any of the techncal work. J. Rives Childs was the head of the . -ciPher s_olving section and rity husband was left .with the colde 

solving se_ctio:n., although his aniliytical genius lay on the 

--·_cipjer side :rather than the code. side. That 'was a of 

--_breaking one. arin.y field code ori: _the part of j;he Geimans and it 

·:would be ··replaced in three weekfL_by But if you had solve_d 

- ·.most· of_ the other _aile,: _he jus·t· it over .to a: -:.-•::. 

·_-_--:: __ -_·. :th8.t tO a 

) . ' , ->.: that new . -·. .. 
- . . ·.". ' -···. 

Dr .. ,Pogue: I ..see k _they didn'·t ·it, -.they just shifted it ?;··:.::; ·,., · 

Mrs.' Frie-dman: And he was chosen although he was the latestet 

to ·arrive of all ··of the younger who worked imder Col. Moonnan; 

he was the one ·selected to stay and w:i-ite the history, the 
. -

of in the cipher and code Sections. 

Dr. _Pogue: You mean Col Friednan? 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes. He didn't get back until April of 1919. 

Dr. Pogue: Was±k he in Paris then or did he stay at Chaumont? 

Mrs. Friedman: He was a Chaumont. 

Dr/ Pogue: T.pat 1 s still used as a French baracks. Christine and 

I wnet kn 161, it still being used and I checkect'recently 

an(j ± ± Xz they say it still is. I found a postcard of the way 

it looked when Pershing had it. Nm•t you were going to tell me 

something about Childs. 



. ,,. 

' . • 

May of 1918., because in November o:f four young lts. who had been 

selected by the powers that be in Washington to- head a division 

of cryptograhy .and ca at Chm..unont. The!y we!e .sent to us for 

training and they were at Riverbank· for ·a whole four months. The·y 

·were all _collE?_ge graduates,. J·. Childs, was not ·only a 

graduate of Z;p<:R -ndolph-Macon ·ror Me"h at Virginia, but he 

-Was also had a·degree from Harvard too. The -other three didn 1 t 

have·mOre than one degree. One of them was a newspaperman" 

·-I -CB.n' t seem ·to _remember what. the others .had done, ·one was named Grah 

:kn± ·and one had a newspaper man"--. his name was Knight, -I think -=--
-·,,._:-- -; perh8.p's. __ :_th"e .:Knight >r don It know. AJnYWay .. · 

- :.: .>. - -\: . .-·· _"-- :-._: __ _. :- _;,> -_ __ ., :;·- ·-__ -.-- - ------- --·,--: ._ • -- _- :·: -
_ ... --:.:: __ , ... --,,·,these _.f'SJur .young men then proceeded to _:France __ and J;: Rives __ 

_,-_ . 
:_;-_ _. 

. '·'- .. .- :'--;-" • __ -,. ·:·" 
_head of the cipher solving ·section at GHQ. Than ID.y · 

.. .. '-: __ ;.:·-·,-::_· .. :-:: --· - - . ·_ .' - .c· .. :-:;:· . :. ,, .: 
-_ hsSbcffid-. Was head- of -the V:ing seCtion he _ -::.-_··-

•-.' :··--··--- ----. .: :.:.· ____ .. --- . .,__-·., _. 

)got OVer there.---- What · o_f ·the·se--··cithe_r· to. ·the oz·lgiriai four . ... - . _._, :_> 

1 t·s. who_ had been trained by us·" I ·don't know. I ·don't 

remember what the±r mark was in the . .... _ -, 

Dr.?ogue: -Now none of these -went over _.-Until May of 1918? 

Mrs. FriedmN: No those fourwho were trained rt November went right 

over right after thatJ they must have_been over there before 

Christmas. 

Dr. Pogue: November of '17. 

Mrs. Friedman: Of 117. Then that huge class, that one up there, 

we trained m in January and Feb. of 1918 at Aurora, Illnois 1 

it was the Lincoln Highway from Riverbank. Col Eabyan padi 

al l the of all that vast group of people. P.nd he's th 
\' t ' '· . -"" n 

in the certter is my 
. 'I"\ \ .. _._., -\ ,r,.--.__..-

husband in civilan clothes and Mrs. - . 

Cora Jensen here name was, the girtl who was a sort of factotum a lit 

hit. nf' eve·rvthine:. sort of a coill.e clerk and a file clerk and a 



girls who had been recruied on the female side, Col. Fabyan is 

the man in civilan clothes pmx on this end. Arnd I ·hhink yeterday why 
I mentionedbut this is apropso. ¥au say :l{}Ull.J!: was my husband 

not in uniform, it was only that after that class was held that 

husband out, and at the moment I caimot tell You· he • 
·found it Out; he learned that .war Department had many months befo. 

right .after :the partically, had been offered a commission .. 

a le"tter had bee"n sei1t affering to· __ .ffiJ:" husband for _·w'?rk over 

. seas and· Col thought nothing of opening ev:erybody 1-s mail.· 

.. · He did it -:regularJ.:Y. And my l:).Usband neve!- learned about that until 

I ,' ::-- , 
, . ,· .•§:; · ·-Z ·:::;: .u I . ·.··, ·· 'a;t;'r I think he found it in s: ._,,, 
I :· . •-'' '-''' .,, 

Dr. Pogue: So you think that photograph was probably ±aken in 

f 
'' of .118. ·And that he went into uniform in May -, 18?. 

! 

l Mrs. Friedman: Yes. 
. 

' Dr·. Pgoe: Went ?ver s_hortly thereafter? 

Mrs. Fredman: Yes. I think he hadn't been. in uniform more· that 
two or three weeks when he left for overseas and Ie travelled 

alone, he .didn 1 t go vri th any gro:up - travelled o_n a troop ship 

of course. 

Dr. Pogue: "He had been assigned to headquarters, in other words, he '>J 

there for GI;[Q duty. 
Mrs.Freidman: Yes. 

Dr. Pogue: don 1 t knm.; Whether you 1 ve ever put his doGU, there 

may be an annotation on the back·of that ... 

N:rs. Friedman: What the messge is? Knovrledgvr is Power nad the 



There was one person lacking to make the completely me_ssage, NhiR 

Knowledge is PoWer, which was kind of a daily precept in my 

husband's life, Everything to him yields before knowledge, knowlede 

is power. He never ever for one moment relaxed that precept. 

Dr. Pogue: That brings up a I had intended to ask you 

about his breaMdown. Was there any particlialar personality chage . . 

after that? But I gather he· had always -had this rather demanding ... 

.. JJ'fY Friedman: Very high standards. 

Dr. Pogue: For himself and .. 

Mrs. Friedman: ·others. 

Dr; Pogue ... and alSo expected other peopl€ to well and live 

· ... U.P _-tO ce:rtian __ , stMdards. ·-anq. he didn't :sUffer fools gladly at 
.. ·-

Mrs. Frediainn: Yes. You-'re .quite 'right .... The one thing that I was 

going_ to Say about ·-this man Rowlett, ·that he just wasn't the 

caliber of Dr. Sinkow and Dr. Kullback who just dove in, you know 

and became very.hard workers, _very analytical ·and were 

achievers from start ot f'illish, btit taking things in the±r 

s·tride. ·TheY._ .. didn't thin@; that they were messiahs, but good 

commansemseful people. -This man Rowlett was very lazy and I 

just mustn't be quoted on this because it would reflect 

-badly. on my husband, but I want you to the truth, he 

was really quite dishonest and some of the things he did in 

connection with my husvands achievements - taking credit for 

things that .. 

Dr. Pogue·: Did he rise fairly high in the administrative ... 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes, he bacame head of a sect-ion which : wh,:d: yrn_, 

call it,· I don't know the tenn they used for7 it, but when the 

organization got to be .10, 000 people became the 



administrative job as far as he was concerned because I don't 

he knew any language, but they had al these people, 

AuStrians: translators,· ·the Italian tr:an'siators, 

f-tJ::le. Japanese_ and all that. He became 

head of that section. But one of their jobs ··was not only 

- taanSlation l&H::t · it was to _out tangle_s, there are 

_·always tangles in messag·es and the .. ·language many times -was 

the· ii1:strument in -·straightening out _the tarlgles .. ·-._-... ·. . 
So ·that a translator _had to b€_ more than a language e;KPert, ·· _:·· 

/ 

···-· ··· .. _. . .•.. .· .. lie·· had b;ains ,-' 

·- ·. it· was -.·wrong or be able .. fit !;hat -·:;,L··-
) .. - · ·._- ;_ · .... :.,'c• '-'' ;;c_ - ' :•.,· <;::·,:·:. . 

thai 'kfud of .-thing.-:-_, __ . __ ---.-
-_c_ . -.. ..:" ... __ .-, . - .. _--... --

__ ._... :.· ·- ·-_,._ ' ... . . -

Dr.-- Pogue:· Now :let's go back--tO--GHQ a millUte.-.-He Was there'you--say'·ur 

the spring of-1919. Was 
. . .. · f" .. . . . . 

he mostly jusr.fl _in _and ?round Chaumont? 

Did he spend any time in Paris? 

Mrs. -FriedmN: .. W·:ll he so en some time in Paris but as a tourist surel:t 

·Dr. Pogue: One thing t_hat 1 s _goi_ng to baffle a biogapapher is 

that you've.got;4s beacuase of the natUre of work there 

are going to be so few stories about things they did because 

for he couldn't RYe 

way of codes or something 

told about what they broke in the 
y 

of the sort. seems to me that he 

got hold of some German information before thx our last push 

vre were reading some of their messages or something. I canft 

remember ex_actly what that was, I remember reading something about 

it. in G-2 wrote an account of of their activites, 

a big account told how we some messages and let the Gennans 

pick them up, which is another You don't recall any 
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orgai iztion. Did it remain a very small section? 

Friedm-an: At Chatunont? Actually I don.' t knm.J"7 but why' 

dont' we -ask i.: Rives Childs. He's in RJ..chmond right now. 

Dr. Pogue: It'S important ·I would think that Clark talked to him . 
. -

Mrs. Friedman: Clark has sen him briefly. onE;e .. Childs has ·had 
•· a habit, ·he :tetired.and went do live in Nice, he'S had a habit 

Since Mrs. Childs died of going to Strafford on Avon in the· 

fall of every year and See say_-ihree to five palys something_ 

-like that. Adn Clark .saw him and talked _to him last year. 

·But he wrote _tl].at f=:xpe_ct ·to see him a@:;ain. and 
----. 

. _Ri ve·s, I calihim ·m ves, -·because _we vei;y .good_ firends, 

_.,--: .. .-:::.said =h-- .. be 8.b1e ).<·:;::-;_::.-_--
.. .·this· winte; · 8t .6f · 

" . " . ·- . . -

_-_·_ .out.-at- the _college he 'has been in the- Jefferson hHolte __ 0'. 
-

in RiChmond. ihiS .. letter I :had him last week he .: . 

feeling very v_ery ill and said he had a leiter from David Kaim ·_ 
who want so t see hinl inE Englad 7 when_he goes_ to England this .. 

year and he said I don't kneW whether. I'll be albel to go or 

-not ... 

. Dr. Pogue: I whate we were going to put down that he 

on tha Hoover committee. 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes 7 he_ was the 7 what do they call that besides ... 

we speak of it as the Hoover mission, but what was that special 

wprd fo_r i L .. 

Dr. This is the one in the war or just aftervrards? 

Mrs. Friedinan: It was just after wasn't it? 

Dr. Pogu·e: the one that went to Russia? 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes. That's wjere J. Rives Childs methis wife. 
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the refugees, and theother was fNxxx ... it wasn 1 t called the 

Hoover Mission, it was the AmericanMission to Aid Russia 

or sometfuing of_ the sort. 

Mrs. Friedman: I know that he did d9 that and when he came back 

he got a job with the PreSs and was stationed at the 

White '-House. Later he went ·into :the dip1Qmatic service. . . . . . 

.And __ he got the. service because he waS so discussed 

with. McCarthy"s caryings on ... . . ·. . . ' 

. . 
.Dr. Pogue:_ Wa he ·- ' . . . . . 

. . . 
, ·.-Mrs. -..}friedman:_ Yes. He was ·to Ethiopia, was his 

-. . 

.: ____ :final.'asSignffi=.nt:--He had beeri in Saudi ·_Arabi"a before_- that :and 

.• · ····;··!{,•;,( . 
. · ... :'>cj; Pogue:'i :thcmght that . did recall he had .a couple of .Middle ;c 

.. , _ -·-/:- · _:::/ : .- ·· _, -:- --- : ,. ,-··:._- _ :--, _ ... (-_,_ :--
.. - ;· .. :· -· ·. ·-c:)Sast appouiltmejlts. He's very -anxious .to talk to_·· Clark -- ·.- -:-·----
., -,,_c_ .. J; __ ,, ___ .·.,.·;_-

,. - .. -- - f - - .,_.. -

_ .. ,· ··said so ·in his last letter.-, ·-:' 

._ .. 
-Dr •. I woUld ·think that Clark's going. to have to depend on 

him almost totally for: this period of _WW I because there 
at that time that ate 

· wour:ldn 1 t be many that were ··with .him" ±rum. aJ.ive 

Mrs. FreidmN': I don't _know of· anybody thati a:)uld name ·right now. 

Mark Rhodes is ·dead, eVerybOdy that I cart think of ri_ght now who was 

in Coi. MoOrmans sec tin in GHQ ... ·there all gone except 

J. Rives Childs 

Dr. Pogue: If they were any age at aJ.l, they got to be in their 

upper 80's. Col Friedman would be ... 

Mrs. FriedmN: Let 1 s see, he would be ... he was 78, that was 

69,he 1 d now. 

Dr. Pogu.e: · Probably 82/ 
Mrs. Fiiedman: Yes. 

Dr. Pogue: And he was younger than some of them I imagine. 
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Mrs. Friedman: That's trus. Many of them men in that group were far 

older than he. 

Dr. Pogue: Yes 2 because he looks so Xyoung in this picture.Then· 

came back uniform. How l?ng Hid he stay in uniform 

after the war? 

Mrs. Friedman: He finally was discharged at Ft. DixJ But the Army 

d;idri't discharge ·him when he. firSt report·e·d for discharge they 

·to pez:suade him 'to sray -i.n and at that t_ime he felt that 

he 1 d _like to get <;mtJ . get awa;y, was· behind hin for 

ever and cOj./ ··Fa by aD. and all shiriailegans. _ He warited _t-o_ use 

, anaiyse s •.. ·._-.•;--.-· 
··: :. _ ·: some business but every place :N he wquld ·go :"to apply for -a ... 

-... . : 

• . _.:.-..... -,:. .:,.:::_·_,_,_,:-.. ''- . • .. ·.:"·': .. · ' 
.. e-JTe_ri Or-·comp8ny -:that -.he. hadwritten. 'to :ind ;. 

-- <--. 

interview With the president of.the company, would arrive a 
' . . 

:telegram fro -George_ Fabyan saying "Come to River\ranlc 

You '_re salry has ·be_en going 11 Now that· Shows th-e calibre 

of that man. He had us followed. He Opened our mail. 

Dr.- Pogue: .Well, did the salary actually go on? 

Mrs.· Friedman:No, he never paid up. He aarried his word very 

Dr. Pogue: Incidentally J a footnote. When did he die? 

Mrs, Friedman: Col. Fabyan? l934. And Mrs. Fabyan died in 1 36 

or '37. 
Dr. PogUe:· Did he continue to the endofhis 

'i: ,r:) · 
life 'ffi various experime 

Mrs. Freidman: Yes and the sound laboratoru and the engineering 

laborator.-y- are still -operating. When Mrs. Fabyan died whe left t .. _ 

estate "to tOhe state of Illinois to be used for a park. But that 

was exempt, that was on the west side od the Lincoln Highway, the 
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. 
of IllinoiS hasn't been very generaous. TheJ:.a±:x latt time I saE.w 

it it looked pretty run down. I Mont _think they were spending 

much on ·keeping it up. The sound laboratory __ is still there. He 

built ihe second sound cham ?er, theTe was only one 

in the United-states the Sabin Sound at Harvard and 
' he built. thcit chamber there at Riverbank under ·the 

of Dr. Wallace Sabin. One of the thingS that's 

interesting that ii?- FabY-an·' s engineeZ:ing· and sol:md laboratory, 
. - . . . 

_'developed_ a 'tuning fork ecxept that "it was the kind of tuning 

... - fork that woul"d be used in ordnance and the_ bought ·it . 
. _ ---·;:- --= "--·· ·:.-: ••. __ _ _ . .- _ ·;:' .: :.:::_:_: .. _-:_:-.· •. -- <·. _. _ -.. 

:was ·into .use.'·.That 1.s ;the,,only-,thing _I of' 
; _'!:/.';:, • .. .;:>• '_- ;; ·_.:-'."-,; _.:.• -,, ., .---, ,- .·:: • • _ _.._,.-,_, i_• ;:: •o. :•. : e',,_',•,, _;· ; .",•-

' ;.:_.: :-- . _:· ty heai- --t-he in .. -__ .. ··:- · 

---:' 

-. 
I 

1 . • • . ·' ·-··: "_ .> -· .•... -... ,_ 
.. wouldn't ·abO-tit I expect that_ your 

-----------

- =. ,· .. . . ." .. o ;···'-

·helped ·kill that off more than ever. Yo"u sa:y he came back ·.---

and get out of ·the Army, was put_ off for awhile. 

Fabyan inte-r-fer '!Hi th it. Did he::go ahead and leave the 

. Army though in l9l9? · 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes. He took the discharge because he didn't want 

to. stay in the Army, it was too limiting.to him. He didn't. like 

the restrictions ab9ut having to spend so qny years, so many months 

there, so many yars here and be subject to -- changing orders. 

He wnated to get into one specific thing and stay there and I agree 

with him oq that. 

Dr. Pogue: Well the Army in that day -aas pretty adamant this, 

that you to move every three years. 

Mrs.Friedman: Yes. The;¥ 1 re·not so set in their no'H. 

Dr. Pogue: The· Anny in those days did not belive in special.-:hsts. 
I. 

-- ,..,..,,, n rln ::lnvthin9:. 
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Nrs. Friedman: Well, if I may fin.ish the bit of p'ersonal_ matter 

-in connection with the Riverbank service, shall I _say, at 

Riverbank, .because it am.ounted to that because each had marching 

orders and _all that. We tried to get away ·rrom there. We got 

ata(jr away on the·_-:t:ourth .. A_rrny was after 

my husband they were detennined to get ·commission 

·or ho± c'ommissioi).. If he wouldn't accept a commission, all right, 
. . . · · 

come as a be_given the salaiy of such and s1,1ch 

-- , _and tle_ will be ·such and -:we 1 d 
·- ' 

.. 
go to .:col. Babyan · .. 

-, _: ___ about- this· off-er Md he ·wocld sweep it all aside _. _ 
_:_ • ,_. - · :·(; ··:.1-· _ //-':.": --- ·· · . · _, · .. - ·<>.-.:,_ _._. . • • _- -"':'<-· · .#· .. -. 

_·.! -::· ._ ·.'· ·say 1_11: give you twiCe ··;if' _.·yoU 0 

__ ·staj '-here·; .. 

,., .. 

. : ,;;·_::;:_·:;; >f----::... . . . . · .. -· .. _., .. ·.. -.. > .. _. ·.·.:-: ;-.;': . 
you -just ::couldn't :talk to the man/ ·he '<i just· walk off (.:::·1 

.;;_. ,. ·.' : -· '' · " ---.• , ; ·. · .: j, ... -· . ·, · .-
= .. be-_,talked to . .'That ). 

·· · .. ·.- .. ·-: ·:_. · ..... _· · -:· · ·- . -· ·. · -: .: . .-_" .-. . . . . ..''-:- • ·:: -_-..::;..;, ,_ _ 
.. :three ··tirileS,''(then .·I S.8:id '_'LoOk -we've· ·=got·'-to ·· Co!!le to our 

senses. 

that time we were liv;i.ng in a house in the village of .Geneva; .... __ . . 
. a mile and a half from .. the eState.· So we got r_eady to 'leave. 

We_ packed up and got everything loaded up unto a-car and 

completely that house - cleaned out and locked up 

that house and then we went to him and told him we were going, 

and that we were taking the three o 1 clo"ck train. That's the 

only way got away. 

Dr. Pogue: Did_he make a big fuss? 

Mrs. Fridman: Yes, He was pretty angry and he didn't for 2. 

. 
long time and -then I guess curiosity king o got the getter 

of him or something or other, and he a not too unfriendly 

letter to my husqand and so they corresponded after a fashion after 

that. But he w:a? so iuthless about having his mm way. 
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- __ _;_-..:.. __ . ·.:.: 

Dr. Pogue: ·-That_' s probably What made his a good salesman. 

MxExxRxX Youbknew when_you left there that he was going to the 

Army as a civil-an? 

Mrs. Friedm-an: Yes. 

Dr. Pogue: And this was in 

• Mrs. Friedman: Yes. We had met ... You see Col. Fabyan tried 

. to ·control. everybody ·and. everything that he .everhad the 

Slightes·t fringe· contact with -and one of them was the Signa=!-

_-,_- __ ,-corps_ of ·the _Army because Joseph. 0. Mauborgne, .who later , . . 
,,_ ---

·signal·Officer w·as the· head :or research . 
- ---·- : 

,···.:· .· wO-rking ·an: things like. that· strip cipher 8nd all that.-.-.-·-· 
.. ... .. --" . .. ·--

·of' ::thing· s·o _.that ·Col.· Fabyan. really ·wanteq, to _do· sonl.ething.--

-. ·. -, s far tha - · .. 
r. - _\ _ .. :-;:- .• •. .. .,.-". -- -:-;·_ •- -·.: --··--

· · - he. woulct have-. seen th_at _as- giving him 
.:-:.---'.- :-_-·:: .• -''" .. _ ..... ;·_-.___ . .-

. -power to "Weild this or that or. whatever end he· had in view. 
.· . 
So that 'really the Signal· Corps, .you see my husband had been 

in _Military Intelligence in WW I, and then when he got _out 

,_.--

of unifonn that. w·as over - he was no longer military 

Dr.Pogue: In other warNs, he'd been in G-2 seCtion? At instead 
of ... 
Mrs. Fredman: Yes. 

Dr. Pogue: -Now he 1 in Signal? 

Mrs. Friedman: Yes. Then Mauborgne was still head of research and 

development when he suceeded ... well, he helped us get away 

from Riverbank in our secret plot to be able to get away 

without gettin g out throats cut .. Mauborgne, who had been an 

inventor, he was· and inventor of some radio things, 

don't kn'6w exactly what in connection with radio;:r, but that 

was. in the early days o radio. We reported for 1,-10rk on January 1, 

1 0?1 t.n the SiJZnal Coros of the Army. 'He vrere to rebuild; ieamplif 
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;,_,. ____ 
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,. 
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correct, do whatever was necesary about the Army's codes. 

They still had no cipher as an official cipher. Yru knm.,r that 

Army !i disc g@:±Rg X A B C _going_ this direction and N X Y Z 

goiilg th_is direction , :k silly .J..ittle _Army B.isc, that was the 

only device that, existed :.in this_ c.ountry._. 
· through . 

·Dr. That· had been used all d£L:x:.:i:Ng WW I ? 

·-Mrs. Yes. 

Dr. Pqgue: You· say it -a as 

hc;d- .thf:s 

in_this period wheri he. first started tha 
- . 

ex-prize _-·: :, ":.: --- ,· ·-

--:------,·-Mrs .. ::vr_ell; -T year: 
_, -- -. ___ :;_-, ,,, ,_··,-·,. -. __ . __ ---- -... -... -, .. ·:_. ' ... -___ . ,:_.·.-·. --... - . , --.. , ... _ 

<-:-'. 8J.l ·:Of :-the cOdes that year. W-as --._one·: of "the jobs 

.•. ·· .. \;- . ·. ,'T .. .. ---- .. ·. : ;--._.-. . •, ·- -_ .c ... .- -

··pogue; ._This was in 'the MunitiOns Building? .. _ -·, ·-:> ,·· __ -;;:_t';: 
"-;_-.·--··--:•. _,__ . ·-:-: .• -·._ ... _. . _:::--;s_;,;._,- __ ,,,._,.,_ 

-: Mrs. Friedman:' ---_-':_rn the Munitions Bl,l.ilding in ·1921,· we __ 
. _ , -· . 

for ·work on January ·fisrt, 1921 and -we built up the ·manu_script ·.- '_S·· 

"',for a complete new .code of ever sort ,"used. -- rt' .. the 
.--·. 

:job -of the Signal corps at the time to supply all the systems of 

communications for the whole _army and so _we reConStructed, 

revised hrough up to date ·everything that· they had. 

Dr. Pogue: They probably.had a loarger section in R&D working on 

th ngs like radio? 

Mrs. Friedman: That 1 s right. It was during that period to that 

... _about the .cipher dievit:e·- that came later. 

Dr. Pogue: _··was there any particular thing that he did in tqat 

period that or was it just and overall ·type of ... 

Mrs. An overall 

Dr Pogue:.;.reorganization and the like rather than any particular 

thing he contributed in that period. 
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--- --- _., ___ .. -, __ _ 

Yo· satyed thaere six months, a year? 

Mrs. Friedman: ·I was there a year.NaaxthatXsxwRRNXyBRXNRNiX 

D!- Pogue: And _that's when yo,j \.Yerit -to the. Navy for a short time? 

.Mrs. No; :t_ go· to _ttJ.e N2.vy Until 1923 .. No I 

-styed home and starte·d to write a book ·- . a· history of the 

children: and was working On that. in 

l923 when the question _of the of the Hebern 
. -- . ;_-. ,· ·. --

. : -b·y · the· __ ._Na.;y··. Came ·artd _'. _ Mye".i-, --this 
---.--. ' .. ---. 

_-_..,.-·_:_.._-·-,_-: __ ·_who ·had. fallen _i:Or ·z accepted .the------·--· 

.: .c •• ,, 

; the ·Navy needed :""somebody just to ·-help ':hm- there 
., • ·• ··"', ___ '<::!-'}i_.: __ -:: ____ .-.: . 

·- · .-. _- , __ ;·:. · .· l.:f the crypt_ogr:aph_lC? _was 
.. ... , __ ._;. · -g;f' · :_ -· ; ·-:. ·- ' · -. -· 

: ·-·· · --·· __ the same thmg as the cryptananlytlc<sect-;t.on there and ·--.···· 
.. -- :.- .- ·. - .. :. -· -:._· ., _, .-:, .• .. ----

--.:-,·-were- l€£:_t and .dry and Ne:Rrhd for · the 

-Na".vy, __ thies"e ccide clerks, needed _.to .direct them. 
. . . -· -··-. . 

-· ---
the Navy--kep"t 8.f'ter_ and after ·me·._-... r· didn It wci.nt to go 
. . . . - . . . 
to the Navy at all. But·I finally· couldn't seem to get ?Ut 

of' ·it· so I Went for a short time til they could find somebody 

else. ·I only ther atrout five months and that was ± in the 

early part .. ·. 

Dr. Pogue; Did they have alarge group workirig on this? 

Mrs. FriedmN: No. No. 

ID. PogUe:. And Wenger was ... 
" > 

Mrs. Fri€d!nan: He came there as a commissioned officer.-7he 

assistant ·chief of the sec ton, at that time, l-Thile I was there. 

And so 'did s fford come while I was there. And s.-fford was the 

head chief. 
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Mrs. Friedman: Yes. 

Dr. Pogue: Was it a house or apartment? 

.,,_ 
F-· 

Mrs. Friedman: We were in a five room apartment with a real wood bur 

'firepalce. 

·r:r. Washington. musb. have been and -interesting place then. I 
to • 

wOuld think Clarli:X. would want -get some notion of waht Washington 

. was- like at 

Mrs .. FiiedmaD: It 1 s _very hard ·to- jump from 365,-000 People 

.. _'Which- Washington had :wheri we went there, .to over a milli-on nb\i. 
: ... 

Dr. Pogue:. Well,_ the whole area is. .a .million and.· 

:. .• of_ -•parts of Alexandria 
- __ Ma-ryland_ and ._changing everY. 'a.fterllo-orl.-'- you were almost out 

-.- -. __ :·: .. :-. ·- _, .:. -:c:o .. '- :' ,,-_ , ·'•-=· -_.:-· 
_ ;i::::,;-'->;_:_ .J.n _ ."we_ren _t -yoU? ___ .-,,_ ;- . 

. :: -- :__ -_:_··,'.:: .. _, ., _we- Were ';i-i-ghi Rock cre-ek 

Park. · ... 
·.Dr. Pogue:Part of RoCk Creek Park gives the illusion of being 

out-·in the _country. 

Mrs. Friedman: That's ·what it was see. There was·a great 

big glass enclosed porch o'n this apartment and it looked 

r1ght into Rock Cree_k Park. 

Dr. Pogue: A lot of those apartments are still very charming noS. 

I supose this has given way to a much bigger place hasn't it? 

Mrs. Friedman: I haven't really gotten around and covered the 

·territory in Washington for so long that I hesitate to 

Again as· a· we talked about the first place you lived 

here and.the last place what x other ones did ·you live in in 

washington in between? 

Mrs. Friedman: Before we got this apartment at 17th Park Road, 
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triangular area. that's Florida Avenue and S Street and 

Connecticut Aveue all come together. There's this one building 

there, it 1 s a great fancy drug store or something now. But in 

those days there was an. absollh.te_ly divine bakery on the 
. f.\,_., 

first' floor called ·Hubert's. great .. 

he was one of the Wh? and like th 

. and then we· had the second fls>Or, where. this pianists had two 

piailos and -taught_ piano the time and it had two 

small g be_drooms with a fireiblace in one of them, if I remember,· 

a w"ood _bUrning fii"'epiace arld a.-kitchenette 8..nd a ·dinette- . 

. was a house that we .. Oh dear .. .". two _places.that I remember 

We moved from-- that ·aprtment on Park Raod out io_ a five acre 
. . 

palce beyond Bethesda, ·it was all The_ house was an old 

hoUse that had _probably been bu1lt around 1900 but it was in 

this forest of magnificent tulip trees .. They Were 60 - 75 feet high; 

all of them. We lived there over two years when my husband came 

to the ·Conclusion that it took too much time to 

drive in and out from Washington because it took a full two 

hours in those days. 

Dr. Pogue: There was no beltway? 
()\F · 

·No , nothing like that then. 

Dr. Pigp-e·: You were hitting all the stop lights. 

Mrs. FriedmN: Yes .. And then we built this house on tvlilitayy 

Road inChevy' Chae. I-t's near the corner of Reno Road and 
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Military Road and we vrere in the 3900 block. That 1 s the house we 

lived in during_ WW II and entertained all the foreigners. 

That's the house where the British and French and the Indonesians 

and the everybody else Who came to see us during the war. · 

Dr. Pogue: Many Of them would bememQ.er that ·place ·more than the ' . 

latter .place. And_you mo:ved from there into the Capitol Hill 

place? 

·Mrs. Friedman: Yes.· 

- Yo':\ say that 

. .r, f r ... -. :·-
'. ' ··,}v. 

section he was in grew _in '30 

ti' ·,:and then a ·thir'd .. ·. •_: 

: .-_The' .. 
-•: . . , ... ' .· .: -- .. -

·-· . .. 

-.·-·· > ;· .. > .. ·.- .· · : .· ·-.. ·-
-... ·I .may be -mistaken about ·_the four. I can't >_·_.-:' _}-

. -·· '.- . an-d . 

. _Pogue: He keep that orignai one, ex-prize fighter? 
. . ' Mrs. Friedman: · __ The ex-prize fighter, I_guess he lsted _ 

as a stenograP-her untiib he .himself' got a better job or something 

and them of course they began_ taking on ·enormous numbers of 

people· .too on. 

Dr. Pogue: But htat wouldn't be unitl 'the late '30 1 S would IDt? 
Or '40's? · . A--l 
Mrs. F±iedman: No it was in the lter They began taking 

on crowdsof people around 1937-38. 

Dr. Pogue: But up until then he. had just this smill group? 

·well noW d-idn't they start playing around tri th the Japa"=se:· code c.s 

early as'±h±x '38? 

!virs. Friedman: I 1 m sure they were. 

Dr PogUe: I mean ':)n an important scale. 

Mrs. Friedman: Wll you see he never talked to me about those tings 



began 
pretty sure they:kHx1IREH woiking on ... As the Navy did on the 

so called Red Code, which was a navy Japanese system. The"y 

solved that and a lot of the information concerning the 

Battle of . 

. . Dr. Pogu.e: Caine o!fiut of' that one 

Mrs,· Friedman: • ·aut Of that ·one. 

·Dr. That wasn't solved-until aft.e;r Pearl _Harbor 

it? 

. ·::Mrs. Friedman: . Well, no code i"s ._ever completely solved, you 
·., 

··: .. :-.-k.na·w . .And that _was .a code, wasn't a cipher .. 

.. ... .. -- time ; :-
·:..·.· .. · Harbor 'or .they would have known the:'·'.pOSsiblity.:-that ·-sorn"etlhing 

}§;; 
·._.:·-·c ···<:;.<·:-,:·But .:8.ppa.relltly _::a.f±RX -shOrtly af'_ter Pearl Harbor, in time ::::_--;:. ·- · --

. :· .· ·> :":'.:,:. . · .. ·:·_. :_ _,._, -; > _-,_,... . . ..... ;-- -- ... ,_" 
---·:·.-:-.. -for Midway; .. th."ey were reading ·a11 this. Now,- did he have· _ .. ; .. 

·.· ... 
seyeral promotions in this lenght_ Of time? 

.... 
· Firedman: You mean my hEuballd'1 Weli' · he was Lt. Col. 

arid he got the military Tank higher than that. He 

would. have beena general had he not had that breakdown at the 

end of the solution of' the purple code. 

Dr. Pogue: ·But I 1m thinking _back now this beginning. When 

did he go back in uniform? Before Pearl Harbor? 

Mrs. Friedman: Well, he wamt oh yes ... he was in the reserve corps 

all the way thr--:-Ugh. He used to go up to ·Fort Monmouth, Ne•tT Jersey 

twice a year and stay a month giving lectures. 

Dr. Pogue:· He was just doing reserve duty though? 

Wrs. YesJ but he carried that reserve . 

. And he kept going upin rank. 

nr Pf'lanP.· VP.<:>._ h11t. hP r'lir'ln't af'l in unifonn though until 
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Mrs.· Ftiedman: Well', no. 

-.. :. 

'•• .. 
.......... •><·-""'"--'"-·" . ' •-.•->-·---· 

He didn't .... 

r 1 r:·- t: .• ·:_ \. J J 
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